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THE RIVER AND IT& CITY:

AN OUTLINE OF THE HISTORY OF LOWELL , MASSACHUSETTS

I. THE MERRIMACK RIVER VALLEY: HISTORY AWD PHYSICAL SETTING

The Merrimack is one of the largest rivers in New England and one
of the most 1mportant river basing in the United States: It
drains a territory in MHew Hamps shire and M‘SSachuseLts of 5,000

sguare miles.

The Merrimack River's two hundred mile course links the mountains
to the sea and the past to the present. The headwaters in the
Fraconia mountains and the Pemigewassel Wilderness have forests
and uplands similar to those of eight to ten thousand years ago
(New England forests originally covered 95% of New EBEngland):. The
Merrimack runs to Newburyport past the manufacturing centers of
Concord (New Hampshire), Manchester; Nashua,; Loewell, lLawgence;
Haverhill; and Amesbury.

L)

Indians and the Mezrimack

The Indian names for the river indicate its past and present i
physical qualities (many namées were used by the Indians; especd ia;
ly for specifie parts of the rlver, aithough inerremack” survived
‘the longest):

"merremack" meaning "swift water place"

"kaskaashadi" meaning "a river of broken waters” 4

"namasket" meaning "hlgh fish plage" (Namoskéaq/ moskeag)

"cabassauk" meaning "place of the sturgeon

"moniack" neaning "place of the islands”

The Indians dominated the Merrimaek Valley until 1760 (the da

that French Canada gurrendered to Britain). The Indians had a
strong attachment to the river; the Pénnacook Confederacy lLived
along the river from its headwaters to6 the sea but it was debata=
ble ground between rival tribes (i.e.; the Pennacoocks v&. the
Mohawks) s

EARLY BEXPLORATION

The Merrimack is seldom mentioned by any of the earliest explorers
probably bccausc Plum Island at the moeuth of the river wag sueh a
good camouflage. A Ja1103, David lhqram, may have been the firs
Englishman to set foot in the valley in 1589. The first hlSLOLLG
mention was made by Champlain in 1604: "The Indians tell us of a
beautiful river far to the south which they call the Merrimack..."




Supposedly the first-written doucylptlon of the river by early
explorers told of a "fair, large river, well-replenished with
many fruitful islands; the air thereof is pure and wholesome; the
country pleasant, hav1ng some high hills, full of goodly forests
and fair valleys and plains fruitful in corn, chestnuts, walnuts
and infinite sorts of other fruits, large rivers well-stored with
fish, and environed with goodly meadows..."

The first Merrimack permanent settlement was the Newbury settle--
ment in 1635. 1In 1641 the group split apart when John Lowell

(a relative of Francis Cabot Lowell) along with others took up

land in "Newburyport". The first survey of ‘the river was made in
1638 as far as Lake Winnepesaukee (Endicott's Tree still stands

as a marker) and Captalns Willard and Johnson made the second sur-
vey up to Laconia in 1652.

The Uniqueness of the Merrimack

‘The Merrimack River has been known both for its beauty and its
usefulness. It is reputed to have been the favorite, possibly,

of more poets than any other river in the United States. Whittiér,:"

Thoreau, Emerson, and Frost, in addition to many poets and wrlters.
of local fame, have written of its beauty. :

The river is also reputed to be the most hydraulically-developed
‘river in the United States. The Merrimack was a direct stimulus
for a continuous string of manufacturing centers which grew up
along its length. 1In 1918 one-fourth of all the cotton fabrics
in the United States were made here, one-fifth of all the cotton
~and woolen goods, and one-sixth of all the carpets.

‘The Merrimack is unique in its relationship to the culture and
economy of New England. The cities developing along its banks
‘have had a similar history and the river valley has been associa-
ted with many of the country's important figures such as Daniel
Webster, Horace Greeley, Franklin Pierce, Benjamin Butler, and
Robert Frost. '

CHANGES ALONG THE MERRIMACK

The Merrimack has seen many changes occur along its banks: the idea
of "canal and river traffic and its subsequent failure, an agricul-
tural economy shifting to the railroad and the textile industry,
and then a century later its failure and the need for change.

The river has also secen many peoples: the Indians, the early
Yankee settlers, and energetic Lowell forefathers, the waves of
Irish, Greek, French Canadian, Polish, and Puerto Rican immigrants.
It has been said that a river and its people are inseparable, that
they ultimately grow to recsemble each other..



"II, FIRST INHABiTANTS: THEL PENNACQOK INDIANS

1

Lowell was known as Pawtucket and Wamesit Villages;vthe
Indian period was approximately from 1620-1760., "

PENNACOOK CONFEDERACY

The confederacy was'a }lnd of Merrimack Valley treaty organization
which looked after the safety of valley txribes. “Their'territory‘
included all of New llampshire and parts of Mag aéhdéctts and Maine.
" A number of different tribes, of which the Pennacooks'were the
ruling tribe, were united under one "sachem". Separate v1llages'
had local chiefs. Thousands of Indians camped in Lowell in the ;
springtime’ for fishing at Pawtucket Falls. More permanent villages
were also established at Pawtucket Falls and Wamesit Falls. The
local Indians were known as the Pawtuckets and the Wamesits.. . -

USE OF THE MERRIMACK RIVER

The Indians used the Merrimack pr.imarily for sustenance, i.e.,
fish and water supply and the animals along its banks. They also
used the. river for transportation with their canoes, but the river
itself was not changéd or developed by the Indians. The river

was a focal point in their lives; in addition to its usefulness
the river was also used for pleasure such as canoe races or as a
site for festivals and ceremonies.

LIFE~-STYLE OF THE INDIANS

The Indians were a migrant people. From time immemorial the In-
dians gathered at the point where the Concord and Merrimack Rivers
converged to catch and cure their fish. This was their great
capital and before the plague of 1612-13 the permanent seat at .

the Falls supported nearly 3,000 Indians while during the spring
fishing festivities at least 12,000 Indians congregated there.

The spring festivities lasted for three weeks and then the Indians
would return to their widely scattored villages.

Games and Sports

The spring festivities included many of the Indlans favorite
activities and pastimes. They were particularly noted for their
wild parties, games, and feats of endurance. Actlve sporto in-
cluded football, shooting, running, and swimming. o



: 1l). Football ‘
“Football games were games of endurance. The ball was the size of '
a handball and was kicked with the bare foot. The game was played
" on a level plain with the goals placed about a mile apart. Often
the game lasted for several days. Injury was not uncommon.
Before the game all participants llbelally covered themselves with
war paint so that no man could recognize another. This was sup-
posed to eliminate revenge in case of injury or hurt pride.
. -~ While the game was in progress, the women danced and sang songs
' telling of their husband's victories. A feast was held at the
end of the game. o

2)Gambling
Gambling was a favorite Indian pastime and the Indians were in-
tense, habitual gamblers. They played with colored bones which’
were shaped similar to dice. Qften an Indian would lose all he
had which might include such items as moose skins, kettles, and
hatchet knives.

i

3) Shootlng

Shooting matches were incredible displays of marksmanship. The
Indian arrow rarely missed its target even at point-blank range
with a moving, erratic target. The Indian boy and his bow were
inseparable and small boys were given miniature bow and arrows.
Another game involved shooting arrows at each other. Fach brave
developed a skill for sidestepping arrows, a training exercise
which was very useful in time of war. '

4) Swimming
Indians were natural swimmers and Indian children were taught to
'swim at a very young age. By the time he was a teenager the
Pawtucket Indian was able to swim swiftly for long distances either
in calm or rough waters. Indians also sparred with and rode
black bears in the Merrimack River for sport. '

Special Skills

1) Fishing ‘
The Pawtucket Indian was an expert fisherman. Hel knew what bait
to use and when to use it and was skillful in fishing in' rivers,
bays, in the rocks, or in the sea. Fishing lines¢ were made of
hemp and bone hooks were used. They also fished|with nets which
caught sturgeon up to 18 feet long. The nets were constructed of
~cord and were about 30 to 40 feet long. At nighit the PawLuckets’
were out on the Merrimack with a long line which|had a'sharp-
barked dart fastened on its end. The Pawtucket- nderstood the-
sturgeon and knew how to deceive it with a bhirch bark torch moved
over the waters. When the sturgedn came to play in the light,
the Indian then thrust in his lance. k



Ice f1sh1ng was a common winter sport -- round holes were cut 1n
the ice and pike and perch were caunghi in this way Probably fanm-
ilies or large groups of Pa\tucchv would form [1 ahJﬂg excursions -
to the seashore.. The lndlin women were required to be the .
"lobstcrmen". It was their duty to catch lobsters for their hus-
bands who used the meat as baxi for calching bass and. codfish.

It was not uncommon to sec an Indian woman hiking two or three
miles with a 100 -pound load of ]ob texr on hoex back.

2) Smoking Fish
During the summer the lobsters wore dricd for wintcr use. Plat-
forms were constructed in the hot sun and fires bencath would keep.
the flies away until the lobster meat was dry. Bass and other
fish were dried and smoked in the same way without the use of salt.
During the spring flshlnq festivities the river banks were dotted
with hundreds of these platforms.

3) Can001ng
In addition to his fishing skills, the Pa.LuC ok lvdldn WAS an  vee—— .
expert canoceman, Pawtucket canoes wvere made from cither pine or
birch. Before the English introduced advanced tools, the Indian
would ‘burn-out a piné log and then scrape it with clam and oyster
shells. 'The exteriors were shaped with stonc hatchots., The birch
canoes were made of bark which was fastencd over broad, thin hoors.
This canoa was extremely light and made rurnosciv for transporta-
tion overland by one man. DBoth pine and birch canocs were barely
a foot and a half to two fect wide and 20-fecl long.

Social Life and Structure

The Pennacooks were noted for their hospitality and peaccfulness.
They were especially fond of gambling, dancing, and festivals and
were noted for their adeptness in skilled laboixr. MHarriage feasts
were held along the river banks, especially near Lowell Tech.

Medicine men wexe the "intellectuals" of the tribes. Often they
were chiefs as well and had immensc power. t is probable that
the medicine men kept the Indians down and. suppressed advancement.
(John Richardson) Whites later broke down the Indian governmental
structure completely.

Housing and Roads

"Wigwam" means "house" and hundreds of these Indian houses ‘dotted

the clearad plalns surrounding Pawtuckct and Wamesit Falls.  The
Pawtuckets' wigwam was a simple but substantial house. It was

framed with saplings and covered very skilliully with strong water-
proof mats which were woven by the suuaws from Llaggaulgrow'nq along
the Merrimack. The heouses weie completoly woaltboviiceosd and were

said to be warmer than kEnglish scttler heuses. 'Yhe wigwams had a
square smoke hole at the top which could be covered in stormy weather



with a good fire burning, the houses became so swoky that the In-
dians had to lie underncath the smoke. The wigwans werc unfurn-
ished except for the mats covecring the earthen floor. The houses
were smaller in the summer when the families dispersed. In winter -
houses fifty to sixty feet long were built which housed some forty
of fifty Indians. During the summer, the Indian woman was expected
to pack the house onto her back and carry it to some selected
fishirg or hunting location or to the planting fields.

The Indians also had a well-established road system which was
wide enough for oxcarts. Foot trails radiated out from Wamesit
toward other-Indian settlements, hunting grounds, springs, ponds,
and planting fields. ' = '

Agriculture and Hunrinq

The Indians were essentially an agricultural people. Fall was the
planting season and the Indians cleared away the forests extensive-
ly for planting purposes. In fact, there are more woods in Lowell
today than during the time of the Indians. (John Richardson) Any
flat plain along the Merrimack from Lowell to Lawrence was an . e
Indian planting field (watermelon, gourds, squash, pumpkins, corn,
and tomatoes). (Professor Burtt) Belvidere and Pawtucketville
"(especially the area' around Lowell General Hospital) were fertile
fields. The Indians needed a lot of land just in order to exist;
for instance, it took six sguare miles to feed one Indian family
(or four Indians).

The winter wos good for hunting animals. The Indians camped in
the Lowell-Dracut forest in dug-out holes which. were covered with
brush for warmth. Deexr yards were located in Spruce Swamp and at
the apex of the Concord and Merrimack Rivers.

Changes in the Area

The Indians adapted theﬁ gselves to conditions that they found in
New England and learned the skills of survival. They were never -
masters of their domain and Lhey changed New England very little.

ARCHAEOLOGICAL REMAINS

Ona can still find arrowheads in Lowell, particularly in the areas
of Lowell Tech and the Lowell Cemetery.. Several Lowell residents
have collections of Indian artifacts. Burial grounds have been’
found at Lowell Cemetery and Fort Hill, Hard and Warren Streets,
East Merrimack and High Streets, and Lowell Tech (several complete
skeletons have been found). There are also other burials in the
larger area and Professor Burtt thinks there is a large: burial
ground between Lowell, Dracut, and Pelham.



LITERARY ASSOCIATIONS

Literary aséociationS‘with‘thc Merrimack Rivexr began with the
Indlans., S ' '
. "{his swiftly flowing rlver,
this silver gliding river,-
whose springing willows shiver, -
in the sunsets of old . . ." (Passaconavay)

ﬂ'
¥

The Indlans told many sfochs and legends about the Mcrrimack.

The most:famous legend occurring in Lowell is the legend of
Prlnuessteetamﬁo, the daughter of the famous adChLm, Passaconaway
She grew up at Pcnnacook (Concord), lier father's ]OYdJ residence,
but in dye time was married to a great Saugus Sachem's son and
went to live with him along the coast. But her father grew lonely
for her and it was agreed that she wculd go to visit him. Even-
tually misunderstandings set in between the Princess' husband and
Passaconaway and thus the father wanteéd to kecep his daughter with
‘him. But Princess Weetamoo grew lonely for her husband and one
day she secretly left by canoe (she was reputed to be a very good
canoeist) to rejoin him.' Her tragic fate came at Pawtucket Fallse——-
when she tried to shoot the rapids.. She died near the spot where
later Wannalancet had his wigwam. It is said that every spring
the lovers of Indian’ lore come to the Falls to see under full moon
the form of the Indian maiden in her canoe against the Falls.:

HISTORY OrF INDIAN CONTACT WITH THL
EARLY WHITE SETTLERS

Passaconaway

‘Passaconaway was the first Merrimack River Indian of any historical’
account,.’' He became the sachem of the Pennacooks sometime after the
landing of the Pilgrims. He divided his residences between Pawtuc-
ket Falls, Amoskeag Falls (Manchester), and Pennacooh Island (Cdn-
coxd). & : . , _ :
;4
A good undersLandlng cy1sted betweon Pa%saconaway and the early
. white settlers Passaconaway wanted peaceful relations with the
English; 'he perceived that for the Indians to contend with the
English would be suicide. There are many examples of -the help he
give the English. For instance, he would warn the sc¢ttler of ,
Mohawk Indian attacks, and at one point he dellvered dllwhlS guns
to colomal authorities. :

Skills Taught the Settlets

The Indians taught the settlers how to survive by teaching them

the following skills: how to plant corn in hills, how to store

focd in cellars, how to bank their houses with bu shes in the winter,
the arts of camouflage and defense, how to take ‘color from the
forest (the Indians loved color), how to notch trees, and collect



sap for syrup, how to store frash fish for months packed in bark
below ground, how to dryv fruit and tobacco, fishing skills, know-
ledge of antidotes, poisons, lotions and painkillers, and finally,
the Indians introduced the clambgke ko the settlcrs. (Professor
Burtt) .

Eliot and Christianization.

The Christianization of the Indians began very early. As early

as 1607 there were evidences of Jesuit priests in the Lowell area
(beads and crucifixes found by Eliot) and many weré converted to
the Roman Catholic Church. The real christianization of the
Indians, however, was begun under John Eliot during Passaconaway's
rule. John Eliot, "Apostle to =he Indians", learned the Indian
language (the Pawtuckets spoke the same language as the Indians

of the St. Lawrence River) and y¥irst visited Lowell in 1646. His
second visit was in 1648 during the great fishing festivities.
Passaconaway asked him to live with them and be their teacher.
Although Eliot did not live with them he came many times to preach
to them in Nahamkeage (meaning "flshlng place”, the Pawtucket  vemme
name for the land along and near the river north and west of the
Falls), in Wamesit v1llage, and on Massic Island in the Concord
River,

Eliot Church stands on the spot where Eliot often preached (Eliot‘s
log cabin stood until the 1820's when it was finally torn down.
There is a picture in the church of the original log cabin.) Eliot
originally preached on the northern side of the river in the forest
area, but later the "Strange" or unchristianized Indians scemed

to live on this side, although not within the Indian "reservation"
Eventually Eliot christianized nearly 10,000 Indians in the area.
(Cowley) The various settlements were then known as “praying towns"

Passaconaway finally converted to the "God of the English" along
the banks of the Merrimack. Eliot wrote the Bible in the Indian
language and had it printed in Cambridge (it is now on display at
Harvard). This was the first Bible to be printed in America (1663).

Indian "Reservation"

Eliot also fought for Indian rights. 1n 1629 Passaconaway sold
land in the Lowell area to John Wheelwright (brother of Ann
Hutchinson). The first settlement by twenty Englishmen came in
1652. 1In 1655 Chelmsford and Billerica were incorporated. The
Indians were losing their land fairly rapidly and finally in 1653
Eliot got the passage of an act that would reserve land for the
exclusive use of the Indians. »

At this time the two Indian villages, Pawtucket and Wamesit, merged
and were known as Wamesit., The entire Indian "veogservation" of
2,500 acres was called hy this name and 1ncluaqd the 500 oxr more
acres on the Dracut side of the river. The boundarics of the
reservation, which were marked by a ditch, were enlarged in 1656

/
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amad 16060, The porxtion of the revceivaktion on thae bracut side of the
river roan all the way to the Spruce Swimp (Lowell-bracut forest)
and beyond to Lenyg FPond (Lhen called Lake Pascaconaway and used for
~hunting and fishing) where an Indian scttlement was located. There
may still be traces of the ditch a few rods from Lowoell General
Hospital. (Richardson) -

Lo

Passaconavay's Death -

The famous farewell speech of Passaconaway in 1660 took place by
the river bank: "I communce with the Great Spirit. He says, "Tell -
your people: Peace, peace is the only hope of your race..." The
Passaconaway Monument is located in the Edson Cemetery.

Wannalancet and Wamesit Village

Wannalancet, the son of Passaconaway, hcecame chief about 1669.
His namc, which moans "breathing pleasantly", suggested his mild
disposition and peaceful nature.

In 1674 Wamesit Village contained a population of 1,500 (there hade...
been a loss of life from smallpox, syphilis, and tuberculosis, all
contacted from the white settlers). The local ruler, Numphow,
held monthly court in a log cabin near the Boott Canal. Judge
Gookin had established his Indian court in the old Durkee House
(now demolished). Samuel, the Indian "teacher™, taught in a log
cabin noar the west end of Appleton Street. (Cowley) Wannalancet
had'his wigwam near the spot where the rronch-hAmerican School is
located. He also buillb a fort on Fort Hill to protect his tribe
from an attack by the enemy Mohawks. lMort Hill was also used as

¢ camping place. The famous Indian PowWow Troe, under which the
Indians held councils, can still be seen on Clark Pe~A —o=c 07
Towisbury line.

Wars Between the Indians ar’
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this war was very great for the Indians. . :
When Wannalancet returned to Wamesit he found his' cornfields had
been seized by white settlers. He and his people were then placed
under Lhe'guardjanship of Colonel Jonathon Tyng of Dunstable and
lands were given to them on Wickasee Island (Tyng's Island). In
1688 Wannalancet and the Indians at Wamesit, Pawtucket Falls,
Nashuz . Concord, and etc. sold all their land to Tyng and others.

2) King William's Wax o
King William's War took place from 1689 to 1698. The Indians in
Canada sided with the French (the French treated the Indian better
than the English did and the Jesuits adopted to a greater extent
the Indian modes of thought and life-style). There were many
attacks on the Lowell area. Colonel Lynde of Charlestown fortl-
fied Lynde's Hill in Belvidere.

k)

%

Wannalancet‘s_pgath

Wannalancat died in 1696 on Tyng's Island. Near the Tyng house'ds._..
a stone marker which reads: "In this place lived during his last
years and died in 1696,_Wannalancct, last sachem of the Merrimack
River Indians, son of Passaconaway. Like his father, a faithful
friend of the early New England colonlsts." He was buried in the
0ld Tyng Cemetery. ‘ : ) :

’
1

Indians Leave th@ Lowell Area

The Indians were oOld .into West Indian slavery, hung on trees in
Boston, and burned to death in their Wngams. They were driven
from the Merrimack Valley and sought refuge in Canada and Maine.
By 1680 most of the Indians had left the Lowell area. They still
had fishing rights and came back for occasional pilgrimages.

They visited Lowell as late as the 1850's and apparently were on
good relations with the Lowell citizens. The last Indian left
Lowell permanently in 1840. The Pennacook tribe eventually merged
with the St. Francis tribe in Canada (their reservatlon is located
today at Odanak in Quebec),
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III. PIONELERS: EARLY WHITE SETILERS
Lowell was then known as East Chelmsford.

A, PERIOD O WHITE/INDIAN WARS (1652-1800)

The early colonists were busy learning the art of survival and
contending with the Indian wars ard the Revolutionary War. During
this period the settlers learned & great deal from the Indians.
The Merrimack River was indispenseble to them for water and fish.

USE OF MERRIMACK RIVER

The river was used primarily for fishing and rafting (two of the
major occupations of the time, the other being farming). Lumber
was brought down on rafts from New Hampshire. Fishing was con-
fined to three days a week on the Merrimack and two days a week
on the Concord. "Fish-wards" enforced the rules and these were
the days of fish-houses and fish peddlars. Fishing Island was
once the resort of fishermen who spread their seines in *he river
and hauled in shad and salmon. Passage across the Merrimack was
chiefly be ferry until 1793 when the Pawtucket Bridge was built

by the Pawtucket Canal Company. 7he Concord River was first
bridged at Merrimack Strect in 1774. However, this structure

blew down before it was completed and it had to be rebuilt several
times.

The Merrimack had a decided influence on the early settlers:
"there was so much river and so little besides that the river
seemed to dominate the whole town." :

SETTLEMENT O THE AREA

The history of Lowell is the history of Dracut, Chelmsford, and
Tewksbury. Lowell is made up of parts from all three towns. In
1652 the first settlers, primarily farmers and fishermen, arrived
in Chelmsford. The town was incorporated in 1655 and the eastern
portion of it was known as the Indian Reservation.

In 1659 four members of the Ancient and Honorable Artillery Com-
pany received a grant of 1,000 acres for service rendered. Among
the recipients was John Evered (alias John Webb). This grant was
called the Military Grant and included land on the northern side

of the Mexrimack River. In 1664 John Webb became the sole owner
and later in the same year he sold half of the "farm of bracut"

to Pichard Shotswell and Samuel Varnum. Samuel Varnum was Dracut's
first scttler and he settled near Varnum Avenue in 1664. Dracut
was incorporated in 1701. In 1734 Tewksburv was incorporated (its
histori¢ portion was annexed to Lowell in 1834.)

B e



Settlers bought Wannalancet's old planting fields at Middlesex
Village (known then as Chelmsford's Neck) in 1685. By 1714 the .
white settlers owned all of the Indian land. Belvidere was part
of a grant ‘of land given to Governor Winthrop's widow in, 1649
which was'later bought by several men. .

WARS OF THE PERIOD

1) Indlan/Whlte Wars -
Up until 1760 thc white settlérs were involved in the various
Indian/White wars which were partially described in the preceding
section. The French 'and Inidan War occurred from 1754 to 1763
and men from Tewksbury travelled to Canada to fight the French.

- 2) Revolutionary War "
Men from all three towns fought in the Revolutionary War. Men of -
East Chelmsford fought with thz Lexington farmers and at Bunker
Hill under Captain John Ford who lived ncar Pawtucket Falls.
Three-hundred-and~one men from Chelmsford fought in the war in-
cluding Benjamin Pierce (fath2r of President Franklin Pierce and
a later governor of New Hampshire). Joel Spaulding of Chelmsford .
is said to have opened the Bunker Hill battle by firing upon the
enemy before orders were given. Two companies of men from Dracut
under Captains Peter Coburn and Stephen Russell fought at Bunker
Hill and Lexington..- One~-hundred-seventy-seven men from Tewksbury,
led by Captains Trull and Brown and Lt. Thomas Clark, fought at
Concord. ' :

RELIGION AND THE CHURCH

The church was the focal point of the early communities and the
history of this period is often the history of religious feuds.

A town meeting-house was usually the first public building erected.
The first town meeting-house in Chelmsford was built in 1654, the
first one in Dracut (the 0ld Yellow Meeting-House which is still

standing) was built in 1715. In 1737 "liberty to warm the meeting-

houses" was granted. Before that time the townspeople had met
at noon in small houses called "Sabba-Day Houses" and discussed-:
morning and afternoon sermons around the fireplace (a Sabba-Day
House is still standing in Billerica).

'Y

EDUCATION .
The first school-house in Dracut was built on Varnum Aéhnue in

1735 and was later known as the Coburn Mission (which has since
been torn down). During Revolutionary times, the Committee of
Safety met there. The first public school-house in Tewksbury was .
established in 1740. There were also several writing and reading
schools kept by various masters. "Dame Schools" were located in
private houses as women were not allowed to teach in public schools
until 1771. Benjamin Pierce of Chelmsford attended school in a
school~house that used to be located at the corner of School and
Westford Streets. By 1882 there were two school-houses =-- one at
Pawtucket Falls and one on Chclmbford Street.

’
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TRANSPORTAYION

1) Roads
The ola nghhay ran along Baldwin and Stedman Streets. There was
also the Merrimack Road which ran along the river and then follow-
ed approximately ilts present course today. The Pawtucket-Boston
Road ran along bchoo] Street and there werc also Brook Road and
ancord Road.

Most of the early scttler roads followed Indian trails which were
sufficiently widened. Totman Road was such a trail. The Indians
followed this path via Spruce Swamp to another Indian village at
Long Pond. Totman Road became the great highway for the early
settlers for reaching the towns north.of Dracut and continued as
such until Mammoth Road was laid out in 1792 following the build-
ing of Pawtucket Bridge. Totman Road was then known as Zeel Road
because of Barzillai Lew, a Negro, who lived on the road (Zeel is
a contraction of Barzillai). Barzillai Lew was born in Groton in
1743 and later moved to Dracut. He served in the Revolutionary
War as a fifer under Captaln John Ford.

In 1668 a road was laid out opposite John Webb's home on theé south
bank of the Merrimack towards Chelmsford. Since a ferry was later
established at the foot of this road (then known as Webb's Ferry)
the road was designated 0ld Ferry Road.

Transportation of goods was either by slow oxen or rafts. The
process pf unloading the goods onto oxen teams as the rafts ap-
proachcd the Falls and the subsequcnt reloading onto the rafts
took a gooa deal of time.

2) Ferries
Tran%portatlon across the.river was primarily by ferry and for
117 years this continued to be the only way to cross the river
exceptlhg by ice in the winter. There were at least five ferries
in the Lowell vxclnlty

l) Deer Jump Ferry (named for the hoofprints of deex
in the area) was for passengers only. It is now known
~as "Varnum's Landing"
2) Richardson's Ferry was located at the foot of
Christian Hill and provided service for passcngers
- to Belvidere.
3) Bradley's Ferry was logated at the present Central

S Bridge and was a chain ferry used by oxen teams.

. 4) Clark's Ferry was also a chain ferry which crossed
between the Dracut shore and the old Middlesex
Tavern in Middlesex Village. Lafayette crossed by
this ferry when he visited an old friend in Dracut.

5) Hamblett's Ferry connected Dracut with North Chelmsford.
{
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ARCHITECTURL OF THE PERIOD

e

There are many houses, taverns and other buildings that date from
this period. Of those still standing are the following:

BOWERS HOUSE (150 Wood Street) built in 1670; this house was the
first to be constructed in Bast Chelmsford. It served as a meet-
ing place for the early settlers and as a rendezvous in times of
danger. 1In 1686 a still was licensed at this place for the manu-
facture of "strong waters" that could be sold to Christians but
not to Indians. . -

PARKER HOUSE (137 Pince Street) built before 1700; this is the se-
cond oldest house in Lowell and the birthplace of the first white
child. The addition of a porch has altered its origiqal’appear-
ance.

VARNUM JOUSE (55 Varnum Terrace) built around 1702 and probably
the third oldest house in Lowell, There was a ferry kelow this
house at "Varnum's Landing" anc the path to the ferry connected we . _
with "Methuen Road" where the Varnum House stands. _General Joseph
Varnum, Captain during the Revolutionary War and Major General in
1805 (also a member of the House and Senate in Massachusetts, a
member of the Convention which framed the Constitution in 1780

and a member of the House and Senate of the United_States),‘qnd
his wife, Molly, are buried in the Varnum graveyard. Colonel
Varnum died in 1820. The first settler of Dracut, Samuel Varnum,
lived' in the house and was a leading citizen of Dracut dyring the /|
mid~-1700's and actlve in polJths and the dcvoloPment ‘of the area.

PIERCE HOUSE (585 Chelmsford Street) built in 1750 was the home of.
Benjamin Pierce, Revolutionary War veteran and twice Governor of
. New Hampshire and also the father of President Franklin Pierce.

.CLARK HOUSE (61 Clark Road) built in the 1700's. This was the
home of Major Thomas Clark who won fame for his exploits during
the Revolutlonary War. :

SPAULDING HOUSE (383 Pawtucket Street) built in 1761 and used both
as a residence and an inn. It is now occupied by the D.A.R. The
house has a long history. It was erected by Robert Hildreth be-
tween 1758 and 1761 and later bought by Moses Davis, a resident

of Chelmsford and a soldier in the Rcvolutlonary War. He used

the place as a tavern. It passed through several other owners

and then John Ford bought it in 1777. He kept it for 13 years
but rented it out. Eventually Joel Spaulding bought it in 1790;
Spaulding was a member of the Chelmsford Company during the Revolu-
tionary War. Jonathon Spaulding came.-to the house at the age of
fifteen. His son, Dr. Joel Spaulding, and daughter Sarah were
born here. The house was at one time used as a stopover for run-
away slaves going to Canada. It 'is said to have always been the
home of ‘men of "good Hew England Stock". At one time it was known
as Davis Tavern and many stagecoaches stopped here.



OLD TYHWG HOUSE (between North Chelmsford and Tyngshoxo Road)-
built in 1670 by Celonel Jonathon Tyng. At onc time it was the:
only block house between Woburn and Canada. It still has a win-
dow called "the lookout" which was used by Colonel Tyng in spot-
ting Indians before an attack. The house is arrow-proof (sand
used in the building materials). Colonel Tyng kept slaves and the
old slave pen can still be seen under the roof. It also used to
have an old slave bell. The stair rail was brought from England
and the tiles from lolland. This house also has strong associa-
tions with Wannalancet.who stayed with Colonel Tyng. Wannalancet
is-buried in the Tyng Cemetery._ The house has had many notable
visitors, among them Hannah Dustin who rested here on her way

home to Haverhill after escaping from the Indians at Pennacook.
There is also a story about a girl, Judith Thompson, who came to
work in the Tyng house and fell in love with the son, John Tyng.
John loved her until their child was born when he murdered them
both. It is said that the ghost of Judith never left him and he
had to leave the house in order to get away from her. The 'house-
is presently occupied by the Marist BroLhors of the Roman
Ca;hollc Church. — v
Other homes from this period still existing are: . THE CAPTAIN.

STEPHEN RUSSELL HOUSE on Pleasant Street in Dracut which was
built in 1755 and typifies how the affluent lived in the pre-
Revolutionary yecars and the REED IIOUSE (Hildreth Mansion) which -
was bu%lt in 1786 and is located on Lakeview.

Important houses that have been razed of that no longhl exist are
the following;

DURKEE HOUSE which was also called the Captain Blood Tavern was
built in 1660. In Revolutionary times it served as a rendezvous
for the soldiers and the level fields adjacent to it were used as
a training ground. It was originally the Indian and Colonial
Court Bui}ding and later a garrison house, a tavern, and a dance
hall. During King Phillip's War it was palisaded and used as a
garrison by Edward Coburn and his sons. Coburn later sold it to
the Blood family who in turn sold it to Major Durkee. It was the
scene of many publlc gatherings and had a "whipping post". Before
it was razed its location was dt the foot of 0ld Ferry Road

LIVERMORE HOUSE was built around 1769 and also called the Gedney
House and the 01d Yellow llouse. Its site was at 149 Stackpole
Street where St. John's Hospital now stands. The land was part

of the grant to Madame Winthrop and the house was erected by
Timothy Brown with lumber from the Ford sawmill. The interior
woodwork was prepared in England and shipped over. A British Con-
sul named Gedney owned the house for awhile and then Judge Liver-
more purchased it in 1866. Livermore named his estate "Belvidere"
His daughter, Harriet, has been immortialized in Whittier's poem,
"Snowbound". The 0ld Yellow House entertained Washington at
breakfast and was part of the underground railroad.  Judge Liver-:
more was a memier of the House of Represontativasz. When he died”
he sold the land to Thomas and John Nesmith who planned streets )
for the arca. It became part of Lowell in 1334. The house qas_-‘
razed in 1969. ' : T
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Other houses not existing today are: CAPTAIN JOHN PORD'S IOUSE

which was. on the northwest cornecr of School and Pawtucket Streets
and the first frawmehousc built in the village by William FleLchcr
in 1653 (it also served as the first town mcct1ng house) . :

Most of the garrison houses of the area no longer exist: both’'the
Hunt Garrison llouse and the Garrison House on Riverside Street

which was built in 1674 no longer are standing. However, there is
a well-preserved garrison house, the 1690 Garrison llouse on Garrison
Road in Chelmsford, which is one of the most tvpical 17th- contury
structures in the region and is used as a museum today.

Most of the, taverns are also gone, particularly the famous- Middle-
spx Tavern (or Clark's Tavern) on Middlesex Street in Mlddlesch
Village which was built in 1780 or earlier.

Cemeteries dating from this period are Woodbine Cemetery on West

Meadow Road in Pawtucketville, the Lngll :ll Cemotory on Corham
Strecet, and School Street Cemctel\ on School Strect.

T b o oo

B. PLRLOD OF THE BEGINKNING OF PROGRESS IN INDUSTRY AND TRNASPOR—
TATION (1800 1822)

This was a short period of rapid improvement and change. It was:
the beginning of early industry in the area and the era of boating
days on Lhc river. :

USE OF THE MERRIMACK RIVER

This was the beginning of change on the river. The river was
changed by canals, locks, ‘and dams which were built in order to
improve transportation and trade between the interior.of New
Hampshire and Boston. During this time the first canal to be, dev-
eloped for the purpose of power utilization was built (Whipple's
Canal on the Concord River at Lawrence Street). These changes
will be elaborated below.

SETTLEMENT OF THE AREA

Hopsing was clustered around the sources of the two canals: at
Middlesex Village and at Falls Village. Another group of houses
was located at the point where the Concord Road met the Merrimack.
There were also houses near the Public Landing and at -the upper
bridge over the Concord River. By 1820 the area had a population
of 200. '

TRADLE

Lowell was the trade center belween New Hampshire and Boston, the’
trading centexr being located abt Middlesex Village. Preduce was
carried by wagons with canvas tows (they carricd bhutlor, anvles,
cheesé, and maple sugar). In the winter horse sleighs were used.
Farmers selling crops would use the ferries to cross the rivers; ‘
later bridges were built. Drivers often stopped at: the old tavern
(no longer existing) in Middlesex Village. In 1814 a bed cost from
6-8¢ and a meal 12¢. '

-
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BARLY FACTORIES AND MILLS

Ay

¢ late 1700's.

" Sawmills and gristmills: werevstarted in the area in ihe I .
“two-on the

By 1794 there were two sawmills at Pawtucket Falls dn
‘Concord River plus the irénworks. : Co

, - 1) Hale's Mill , Jrh ,
Moses Hale built his mill, Hale's Mill, on what vasg carlier known
as Hale's Brook (now kuown as River Meadow Bronk), - The site is’
hear Central Strect on the brook, bul no longer stands. Between
1790 and 1801 Halc built a mill which cventaall, Lecam: the nu-
cleus of large and prosporous industrics including the'woolen mills,
a lumper business, and the manufacture of qunh0hdér¢f jlale purchased
the first picker and carding machine in the counlry and he bocame
famous for finishing cloth. The fame of the mills sopread and the
Governor of Massachusctts and his council nade an OFficial visit
to them. : ‘ S : '
. ) - 2) Hurd iill S :
In 1813 Whiting and Fletcher started a cobtlon mill on Lle Concord
River (above the canal entrance). ‘Thomas Hurd surchaced the mill
in 1818 and turned it into a woolen mill. IL was later bought sy
Bos;ggocapitalists and became the mnucleus of the Middlesex company
in . ' ~ : '

l ' 3) Whipple's Powder Mill S
Moses Hale and his son-in-law, Oliver Whipnle, dtartoad a vowder
mill on the Concord River (just above the upwver bridge) about
- 1812% It was later known as Whipple's Powdoer Mill and sold gun-
powder all over the world. Whipple constructced a’canal, the
Whipple Canal, in 1821 and also owned part of the road to Boston.
There was trouble in shipping the powder to Bostoniif thcere woere.
other wagons on the road as they would sometimas bamﬁfinto cach
other causing the powder to explode. Thus Whipple bought his own
road. They also covered the horses' hoofs with cloth so that they
goud dn "Ensirdkeo anyy sparks..which might set off the powder. ‘It is
believed thatktchese bpiiddngsiskreigipedebuef bytlhn RIPIGEions- -
believed that these buildings were wiped out by an’¢XP10$l°Q',
The Concord River was important in the earlyyhisto;chﬁ'Chelmggoggi
nodecthasraostver the mmpufaamhringtb@_%@ﬁkng%i5ﬂrﬁtﬁﬁiggglﬁpgof r
pgwerbqgtth65ConCordeR@anmfanduﬂim@roﬁeﬁabw1B%ébﬁ@wﬁﬁﬁéfﬁﬁ% ﬁérri:
packrwas endycusedrdoRturn &hé Bavwmi 1lleadev theopkgaile, the Herrd=
mack was only used to turn the sawmllls at the.fg%hs -

4) The 0ld Glass House - Ll . co '
The first real attra¢tibn OhdtBéaageHOHbEZ skilled?vp‘,er§-wa§_$p§,
@iés§if§@tQ§MlO£thnnGWOmliantho&éeinfMiq&Eéééﬁ@v£%¥5§5b9§§§p:fF
dishedfintdB020f Munempldednd0Cpsepia HAGAh&EeH Bé&ggﬂﬁgsﬁ§g$e4
buihtdfon 1ts2workersmpadsodifllpoeplanangrbadnilPorseaRdahat™e

243 Baldwin S sdsi é PresonidYquaseses bE '
89148 Baidwin Sbreets, &t msl&nléﬁ&mp&@do@riéQiﬁ%§%&,f%%%ngefggg

ghesmiblisdwin Street. It is an example of liv;ngf
the mills. e ‘
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TRANSPORTATION
The boatlng daya.on thc rlver ‘and the era of the Canals cover
aoproxtmately fifty years, from 1800-1850. The canals were con-
structed in order. to .ajd transportation. The problem w1th the
Merrlmack River was the existence of a number of falls. . Artifi-
cial waterways were congLLucted to overcome the problels associa-
‘ted with circumventing the rocky shallows. The two famouu canals
of ' this period are the Pawtucket Canal and its SUCCLSSOL, the Mid-
dlesex Canal. Initially the Middlesex Canal was more successful
than the Pawtucket Canal although in the long-run the [latter has-
. had a much greatcr effch on the area Lhan the Middlesex Canal.

Pawtucket Canal

A group of men in Newburyport wanted to find a way toluse the

river to help trade. They decided to build a canal around the
Pawtucket Falls. The group met at the Varnum House to map the

plans. In 1792 the Locks and Canals Company was incorporated .

"for the purpose of making possible the passage of boats and the
transportation of freight from New Hampshire to the sea by the ~— 7~
construction of dams, canals and locks around the several falls in
the Merrimack River.' ' :

The canal was inaugarated in 1796; the opening ceremony was marred
by the coll.apse of the boat. The canal was cut from near the
- "Great! Landing Place" to "Lily Pord" to "Speen's Brook" and thence
- to the Concord River. ‘It was one and a half miles long, thrity
feet wide, had four locks and cost $50, 000

The four locks are Stlll existing and are the Guard Locks, the
Minx Locks, the Swamp Locks and the Concord River Locks. There

is a footbridge over the latter enabllng one’ to bee lock construc-
tion. : :

1 . .
The canal was used to ship logs, lumber and farm products to
Newburyport. Thomas Clark was the superintendent of construction.
The building of the Middlesex Canal in 1803 diverted most. of the
canal's trade. It was bought by Lowell's associates in 1821.

Middlesex Canal -

l) Early BLannlngs .
The Middlesex Canal was the first canal of 1ts klnd in the United
States. It was begun by financial aristocrats in Boston who
conceived of the idea in order to help Boston trade. The canal
was part of a grand scheme to connect Boston with the Merrimack,
then extending the canals to the Connecticut River and on to Lake
Champlain and the St. Lawrence, thus connectlng Boston w1th Mon-
treal and lower Canada. .
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James Sullivan of Charlestown is the man credited with conceiving
the idea. Sullivan was a justice of the Stalte Supreme Court and
Governor of Massachusetts. Other prominent sharcholders in the
venture included John Adams, Abbott Lawrence, James Winthrop, Har-
vard Collége, and Andrew Craigie of Cambridge.

2) Baldwin

Loammi Baldwin was the leading projector and chief enginecer
(Baldwin's name is also associated with the Baldwin apple which
he was active in promoting). Baldwin became one of the early pro-
moters of American civil engineerinyg which developed along with
the canals. He brought in an English engineer named Weston to
survey the course. Western established two routes -- one through
the supposed old Merrimack River channel which the Middlesex Canal
eventually followed and another route which was later followed by
the railroad. Weston sent one of his leveling devices to Baldwin
which was the first perfected leveling instrument ever used in
America. The son of Loammi Baldwin, Loammi Jr., is considered
the father of American civil engineering.

3) Construction S M——
The construction of the canalfwas a very difficult task. It is
"considered amazing that, with no knowledge of canal building and
with its labor and management problems, that the Middlesex Canal
was ever completed. It marked the beginning of two eras:
1) the birth of American civil engineering under

Colonel Baldwin, and
2) the bheginning of a new relationship
between man and his work. -

Actual construction began in 1794 and it ‘took ten years until the
work was completed. Digging and.construction were undertaken by
small contractors and the hired workers were usually local farmers.
There was a shortage of labor and varying quality of different '
sections of the canal. The actual digging was done with a horse-
drawn plow, pick and shovel, and the wheelbarrcw. Primitive blast-
ing methods were used and there were many casualties. :

4) Completion and Upkeep
When it was finished in 1803 the canal was 27 miles long, 30 feet
wide, four feet deep, and had fifty bridges crossing it and seven
aqueducts (the famous Shawsheen Aqueduct still stands at Billerica.)
The canal received its whole supply of water from the Concord River
and Horn Pond. The water had to be drawn off at winter due to
freezing which caused damage to the canal sides. The water was
also drawn off in- the spring in order to clean out the earth and
stones and to repair the canal. The children in the area loved
this event as it was a chance to search for lost articles and
valuables. Upkeep of the canal was difficult due to building mis-
takes (use of wood for the locks). Men were employed to keep the
banks and towing path in order and to cut the grass from the
canal bottom. '



20.

5) Canal Roats
The canal boats could carry from 10 to 25 tons of cargo. The
merchandise boats were 75 feet long, 9 fcet wide and flat-bottomed.
Some were owncd and run by the proprictors and others were run by
private parties. Many were painted with designs by their owners.
The rudder was a long steering oar and the heat also had three
large scull oars and three setting-poles. The crew consisted of
the skipper and two bovmen. Going down the derxrimack (to the
Middlazsex Canal) the scull ocars and sail were used. Once in the
Middleasex Canal. the hoat was towed along a towpath by horse, usually
without a driver, at about three miles per hour.

The principal articles transported were wood, timber, lumber, rye,
oats, potash, and building stone. The timber used to repair the
Constitution frigate was brought down the canal. Later it served
the textile industries of Lowell and tianchester. 7The transport
of timber was especially important and the shipyards on the Mystic
relied on the Middlesex Canal for many years. The value of the
timber was increased $5,000,000 by the canal.

6) Passenger Boats T
The passenger boat was called the "Governor Sullivan" (sometimes
erroneously refered to as the "General Sullivan'") and had a cover-
ed cabin and scats, and was considered a model of comfort and
elegance: "One of the most charming ways of travelling is to sit
on the deck of a boat and see the country slide by you, without
the slightest jar. . ."

The fare to Boston was 75¢ and the trip tock seven hours. People
came by stagecoach to watch the boat leave (a horn was blown to
announce its departurec). Visitors to Lowell, snch as Charles
Dickens and Davy Crockett, probably travelled via the Middlesex
Canal. Thoreau took the canal from Billerica tc Chelmsford during
his week on the bMerrimack and Concord Rivers. Horn Pond and Stod-
dard Locks beccame a popular resort; there were pleasure boats on
the lake, bands, and always large crowds.

7) Era of Rivermen

By 1815 the Merrimack Boating Company ran a fleet of 25 boats as
far north as Concord, Hew Hampshire. This was the cra of river-
men and boatmen. The best known was Captain Isaac lHerrill who
wal the pilot of the first stecamer in 1817. e also rescued two
men from drowning and won a long-talked-of hoat race (his compet-
itor died at the end of the race). Accidents on the river were
less common than might be expected although several boats were
lost over the falls.
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The Tyler family is particularly connected with the history of
the river and the canals. Nathan Tyler cwncd all the land from
the head of the Pawtucket Canal to the Mcrrimack and mouth of the
Concord River. llis son, Jonathon, was the second superintendent
of the Pawtucket Canal. Another son, Silas, was one of the first
boat captains on the Merrimack River and the Middlesex Canal (he
was Captain of the Governor Sullivan), The third son, Ignatius,
was captain cf the stcamer between Lowell and Nashua.

The first packet boat passed through the Middlesex Canal from
Boston to Concord in 1814. The first stcamboat ran in 1819. A
steamer called the "Herald" was built above the Pawtucket Falls
and starting in 1834 it made regular trips between Lowell and
Nashua. Later it floated over the Falls and on to New York to
become a ferry there.

8) Further Construction
Following the construction of the Middlesex Canal other works to
render the Merrimack naVLgable from Concord, New Hampshire to
Lowell were begun. A scries of dams, locks, and short canals
were built which were often aided by the Middlesex Canal Corporas
tion. Blodget completed the 52-milc scheme in 1807 with his
construction of the Amoskeag Canal at Manchester.

9).The Middlesex Canal Era Ends
The Middlesex Canal was the first canal constructed in this coun-
try for both passengers and freight; it was also the first trac-
tion canal. However, it was a financial success for only eighteen
years due to problems of upkeep and management. Governor Sullivan
and Colonel Baldwin both died in 1808.

The coming of the railroad in 1835 deprived the canal of its busi-
ness; the canal was not open in the winter and it also took a
longer time to ship goods via the canal. The last boat passed
through the Middlesex Canal in 1851. Then it dwindled into dis-
repair and the Corporation was eventually dissolved. At one time
Caleb Eddy had proposed converting the canal for supplying Boston
with water (Boston wells at the time were contaminated) but the
proposal was not successful.

People who lived along the banks used the canal for skating in the
winter. The towpath was the scene of Sunday promenades and picnics.
The water in the canal was used for washing. The canal property
was sold and eventually it was absorbed by the towns along its
course. Few vestiges rcomain today; the best portion is at Billerica.
There is a buried pier of the canal at the site of the proposed
Kiernan Bridge in Middlesex Village. The Middlesex Canal Aqa001a—
tion also has plans to reconstruct a canal boat.
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IV. LOWELL: QUEEN CITY OF THD MERRIMACK

A. THE GOLDENlAGE OF THE MILLS (1822-1865)

The city of Lowell was founded in 1822 and grew rapidly. The area
changed from an agricultural economy to the textile industry.
Transportation via canal and the river gave way to the railroad.

Lowell nicknames

Lowell has had a variety of nicknames, all of them indications of
her unique qualities:

"Spindle City"

"Queen City of the Merrimack"

"Manchester of America"

"Little Canada"

"Venice of America"

"Acropolis of America"

P o — e e

Uniqueness of Lowell

Lowell's uniqueness ‘in this period stemmed primarily from her
spectagcular growth, the many engineering and hydraulic inventions,
the achievements in housing and city planning, and the fact that
this was the first development of a city devoted primarily to
industry. It was also.a model manufacturing community.

SETTLEMENT OF THE CITY

1) Francis Cabot Lowell
Francis Cabot Lowell, upon returning from a trip to England where
he had gone to sec the machines used in the cotton mills, bought
land in Waltham and with several others began the Boston Manufac-
turing Company. This was the only mill in the world where all the
work to make cloth was done in one place.

2) A New Mill Site
After 1814 a larger mill was needed but since there was not
enough waterpower from the Charles River it was necessary to search
for another place. The other Boston businessmen involved were
Nathan Appleton, Patrick Jackson, Ezra Worthen, and Paul Moody.
Worthen knew of the Pawtucket Canal and suggested they could also
ship goods to Boston via the Middlesex Canal. Their chief criterion
for a new place was an abundance of waterpower and the Merrimack
had plenty of that. So they bought the Pawtucket Canal, a then
losing venture to the Middlesex Canal, and bought up the farmland
in the area. Kirk Boott was named manager. The Merrimack Manu-
facturing Company was founded in 1822 and by 1826 the town was
named Lowell (in honoxr of TFrancis Cabot Lowell who had died in
1817 but whose ideas guided Boott and others in setting up the
town) .



New England posscssed the essential elements for textile manufac-
turing: rich merchants, adequate waterpower, a developed trans-
portation system, the beginning of a labor supply, and pure water
for bleachlng Lowell had set up the first successful American
power loom in Waltham and for the first time the mass productlon
of goods was possible.

PROBLEMS ENCOUNTERED

There were problems in setting up a large manufacturing organiza-
tion at Lowell:

1) The Problem of Labor: there was a scarcity of labor at the
time because of the ready access to Western lands so it was decided
that the bulk of their.employees would be the young unmarried
women of the farms, called "spinsters" because they spent their
time spinning cloth. These girls had time and were the least
mobile element in the population but they had to be attracted by
good wages.

2) The Problem of Public Relations: almost everyone in —
America at that time was opposed to the large-scale development
of industry. They feared it would dlsrupt the American social
structure and "deprave the working man" (this came from their
familiarity with the English proletariat). Thus it was practical
to make life in the factories "respectable enough to attract the
daughters of Puritan Yankee farmers"; they had to guarantee that
factory life would not corrupt them. It became necessary to
provide low-cost housing, supervision, religicus and cultural
institutions, and long days to keep the girls occupied. It was
said of Lowell that "a moral tone was maintained that amazed the
statesmen of France and inspired the churchmen of England!"

3) The Problem of Capital: the old personal form of owner-
ship had to be given up and in its place the modern limited lia-
bility corporation evolved. (Coolidge)

GROWTH OF THE CITY AND MILLS

The Merrimack Manufacturing Company set up in 1822 included Apple-
ton, Jackson, Moody, and Boott (and later others). Boott was in
chirge and also responsible for the physical layout of the town.
He followed Lowell's conception of the ideal community. - This was
not a utopian idea but based on work and the mills--these were

all practical men who simply wanted to make the mills a going
thing financially.

The physical layout was essentially made up to two zones:

1) a zone for the corporation, and
2) a zone for the bourgeosie.

Very simply, the plan of Lowell was a serics of mills arranged on
various waterways, a hinterland of housing, and a gridiron of
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streets fitted into the space leftover. Doott was especially
good in the lavout'and’ ozganJ'at1on of the m11]“q1d" (the
plans of all of them are in the Lowell Tech Library).

Growth of the’Mills

1822 Merrimack Mfg. Company

1825 _Hemllton Mfg. Companv.

1828 Appleton Mfg. Company

1828 Lowell Mfg. Companv

1830 Tremont Mfg. Comnany

1830 Suffolk Mfg. Companvy

1830 Lawrence Mfg. Company

1830 . Middlesex Mfg. Company : : '

1835 Boott Mills ' By 1833 there were

1839 Massachusetts Mills : 19 mills.

The Boott Mills are the best surviving examnle; also the
Tremont, Suffolk, and Lawrence Companies qtll] exist althought
underx dlfferent names.

Po? et e

Growth of the Population

1822 Founding of Lowell :
1826 2,500 population (1,000 employeces at Merrimack Company
' . 263 Machine Shop emnlovees
' 400 Hamilton Company emplovees _

200 Locks & Canals Companv emplovees
637 citizens) :

1833 12,000 population 5,000 mill ChD]OVGGa, 3,800 females).

1836 18,000 population (incorporation of Lowell as a city).

1840 21,000 population (second largest citv in Massachusetts).
1845 30,000 population :

In 1826 the town had three mills and two printworks, twelve
stores, one church, one schoolhouse, a miniqter's house, and
two hotels (Frve's Tavern on Central Street and the 0ld Stone
House on Pawtucket Street).

By 1836 the town had a population of almost 18,000 (2,66l aliens
and 44 colored), with 20 schools (average daily attendance of
la370), 13 churches, and two national bkbanks. :

The growth during this period was chiefly in ponulatlon and not
in land area. 1In 1834 Belvidere was added and in 1851 Centralville
became part of Lowell.

THE MILLS OF LOWELL

The following mill ctatlstlcs of 1836 1nd1cate the scope of
the mills:



L Mills ' Capital Spindles L.oons Hen Females
Merrimack $1,500,000 25,704 1,253 437 1,321
Hamilton 900,000 19,456 560 200 750
Appleton 500,000 11,776 380 65 470
Lowell 500,000 5,000 212 150 325
Suttclk 450,000 10,752 640 70 460
Tremo:n* 500,000 11,520 616 70 460
Lawrence 1,200,000 31,000, 910 200 1,250
Middlesex 500,000 4,620 130 185 350
Boott 1,000,000 two mills erected but not in

operation ‘
TOTAL 7,000,000 119,000 4,701 1,377 5,416
Locks and Canals 600,000 290 males in machine shops
Bleacherv and ' :
sm. mills 300,000 300 hands

Merrimack Mfg. Company

The Merrimack Mfg. Companvy was the first mill to be established
and began production’ in 1823. The first shipment of goods was
16 bales which was sent to Boston in 1824. 1In 1826 the print-
works were established which showed that calico prints could

be made much cheaper and better in the United States than in
England. The corporation was resovonsible for all ¢of. the moral,
intellectual, and religious training of the earlv davs. They
established a gchool and a bank and built the first church;

they gave $500 toward the purchase of books for a library. The
first fire in town destroved the mill in 1829. Later it in-
creased to include 6 mills, storhouses, boardinghouses, stables,
and small buildings. It had six turbine wheels and the tallest
chimney in the country was built by the Merrimack Comnanv in
1822 (it was 283 feet high and called the "jumbo chimney")

The Company had the largest pavroll with 2,000 females and 1,100
men and occupied 24 acres. :

Hamilton Mfg. Companv

The Hamilton Companv which was begun in 1825 started a savings
bank for the benefit of its help in 1829 (now the Lowell
Institution for Savings). It occupied 7 1/2 acres and had 6
mills, printworks, etc. '

Lowell Mfg. Companv

The Lowell Mig. Company started with one mill in 1828 and two-
thirds of the space was used for manufacturing coarse cotton
cloth called Osnaburgs, or Negro Cloth, which was largelv sold
to the South for plantatJﬂn wear. The Bigelow powerloom which
worked such a revoluticn in carpct weaving was bu11t and per-
fected in this mill in 1824.
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Middlesex MEg. Company

In 1813 Phineas Whiting. and Josiah Fletcher had erected a
wooden building on the banks of the Concord River and fitted

it with cotton machinerv. They retained ownership until 1818
when thev sold the land and buildings to Thomas Hurd who con-
verted the cotton mill into one for the manufacture of woolen
goods. In 1830 the Middlesex Company bought the mill and -
eventually it included three mills with dvehouses. An example
of the kind of goods made bv the companv: indigo-blue coatings,
cassimeres, police, vacht, and cadet cloth, ladies' sackings,
beavers, and shawls.

‘Suffolk and Tremont Mills

The Suffolk and the Tremont Mills were incorporated in 1831.
and merged in 1871. There were 4 original building belonging
to the Suffolk Company. In 1862 one of the original buildings
was tron down and two of them joined together and an additional
building was added. There was another period of rebuilding -
from 1890-1910. There were 6 mills with storehouses and
boardinghouses, a machine shop, and a stable, with 97,550
spindles and 3,000 looms and 500 males and 1,100 females . v
emploved. The mills turned out 600,000 yvards of jeans, cotton
flannels, drillings, sheetings, shirtings, and printcloths“per'
week, | e

Lawrence Mfg. Companv

The Lawrence Company was incorporated in 1831 and in 1864 begdn
the manufacture of cotton hosiery. Knitted underclothing was .
also made.

Massachusetts Cotton Mills

The Massachusetts Cotton Mills was the last of the manufacturing
corporations (1839). 1In 1844 thev purchased the Prescott Mills.
The first wheels used were wooden ones until 1869 when the - |
turbines superseded them. 1,700 were employed here and the’
mill had 115 tenements. f

Lowell Machine Shopn

The Lowell Machine Shop was begun for the building of cotton
machinery and sold to Locks and Canals in 1826. The shop was
the earliest builder of locomotives and machinists' tools in
this country. The building of paper machinery began in 1858.

MILL GIRLS AND LIFE IN THE MILLS

Raw cotton was taken in from the picker con the lower floor

of the mills, ascended in regular order through the processcs
ot éarding, spimming, and dressing, and came out of the
weazing room in the upper storv as finished cloth.

|
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1) Mill Girls
Most of those emploved in this work were female. The mill
girls came from all over New England although chiefly from
New Hampshire and Maine. Most of them were voung and single
although there were also widows, women escaping from their
husbands, older spinsters, women supporitng invalid husbands,
and etc. Mill girls were often the daughters of clergvmen,
physicians, businessmen, or were orphans, and thev looked
upon their work as temporvarv. Thev worked a comparatively
short time in the mills -~ on the average of 4 1/2 vears -- and
they usually went back home or to school in the summer. There
was relatively little child labor (under 15 years) except for
the "doffers" who collected emptv bobbins, and they were
required to 'go to school three months of the year.

2) A Work-Day
Work began at 5:00 on summer mornings and at davlight in winter.
Breakfast was eaten bv lamplight and a half-hour was allowed
for it. The noon meal time was one-half hour to three-guarter
of an hour. The only hours of leisure were from 7:30 or 8:00 :
to 10:00 in the evening. It was imperative that lights be - ———
out at 10:00. The dining room was used as a sitting room where
the girls sewed, read and wrote, or studied. Thev made and
mended their own clothes and did alot of fancvy-work. Thevy
subscribed to manv periodicals, took books from the libraries,
and went to singing-schools, conference meetings, concerts and
lectures. On Sundays Lhey were in church.

3) Moral and Religious Tone
It was most likely a very "moral" and "upright" societv that
the girls came to work in. No "immoral" person was to be
employed in the mills., Girls were required to go to church
and there was a very high religious atmosphere. Supervision
was strict in the beginning and the nuinber of girls renmoved
from boardinghouses for immorality was very low. There were
only two illegitimate births during the first ten vears.

The girls were often Sunday School teachers and often they
taught the children of their mill superintendent. It has been
said that the religious spirit was unquestionably the most
widespread influence among the mill girls. On entering the
mill, each girls was obliged to sign a "regulation paper"
whlch required her to attend regularlv some place of public
worship. There were many denominations. In one boarding-
house the girls belonged to eight different sects.

In 1843 there were 14 reqgularlv-organized religious societies.
Ten of these constituted a "Sabbath Schcecol Union" which con-
sisted of over 5,000 scholars and teachers -~ and 3/4 of these
were mill qllls.

Once a vear on the 4th of Julv this Union marched in procession
to a grave on Chapel Hill where a picnic was held with lemonade
and long specches bv the ministers. Mill girls went regulalry
to this meeting and to "Sabbath Scheool". Their appearance in
the streets on Sunday was often spoken of by visitors.



The mill girls also contributed to the building of churches. The
Freewill Baptist Church was built largely of monev belonging to
over 100 factory girls who were induced by Elder Thurston of
promises of large interest to draw their monev fron the savings-
bank. In the end, thev did not even receive the interest on
their money.

4) Education and Culture Among the Girls
There could only be evening classes for the mill girls as they
worked 12-14 hours a day and were usually forbidden to have
books at work. In later vears thev did manage to do a con-
siderable amount of studying, but the paid for whatever in-
struction thev received. Many girls came to Lowell precisely
for its educational qulaities -- Lowell was famous for its
circulating library.

Sometimes girls would study French or another language and would

be excused from work for an hour twice a week. Others earned

enough money to go to a private school for 3 or 6 months. Many
taught in schools during the summer. The ranks of the primary

and grammar schoolteachers in Lowell were often replenished M ———
from among the mill girls.

Almost every girl had some book with her, such as the Bible,
Milton, or Bunyan's Pilgrim's Progress. One group of girls
started an improvement c1rclo (which later constituted material
for the famous Low=2ll Offering). Many girls studied German or
Moral Science or Botanv. At the Lyceum Lectures two- thrds of
the audience were mill girls.

Many were interested in antl-olavery reform and made up petltlons
for- the abolition. of .slavery. . By readlng the -newspapers, . the"
girls knew all :about the Mexican War.. Lectures on.the doctrlne
of Fouriex were read -and Mrs., Amelia Blcomex ("Bloomerltes")*
one "of the early’ pioneers in. drese “rdform, found follovers in
Loweldl. Parlor meetinqe were held at some of the boardlnghouses
to,discuSS ‘the feasibility of this great revolution in the style
of ‘womén's ‘dress.. A few of‘the girls. were also intereeted in
' phrenology and had their heads examined by Profes sor Fowler who
was’ithe chief: exponentfof this theory in Lowell Some glrls were
1s0- interested in Meemerlsm. o . o :

B rﬁ,fS) The Lowell Offerlng e e e

The Lowell Offcrlnq was bequn in 1841 and existed for five vears.
“ It attracted much attention in England as during the last three
-yearq the magazine was written, edited and published by mill
girls. . The number of contributors was about 70 and the ‘only
restrlctlon on-subject:matter was against:anything” "sectarlan"
Theme were‘usually memorxes cf home llfé ox work.*gwﬁ;,

Thoe v idnrbhe: Sashidoh of \the. mxli airJn tb appear
in proceevnonr on. all publfce dccasions.. In 1833 it Jackson's
visit all of the mill qlrls tutned out and walked in brocession
"like troops of liveried angles clothed :in -white with qreen—
fringed parasols with. cannons boom:ng, durns, boating, bannners
flying, and: handkerchlafs aving, " oo . L

o '6) ProCesqmons
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-7y Irreqular qucharqo*
There are interesting records of the reasons for irregular
dlscharqcs. IFirst of all, no girl was employed who was
1ntemporate" or even known to drink. 'The power of opinion
was an ever-present .restraint on bad behavior.. A girl that
was even suspected of immorality or bad conduct lost "caste"
and if not dismissed from her boardinghouse the other bhoarders
. would leave and would not. qneak to her, eventuallv the girl
would leave of her own accord.
’ The names of all dismissed for bad conduct were recorded in a
book and sent to all other mills so that the girl could never
dgain obtain emplovment in Lowell. Many'of the regular discharges-
were for sickenss, marrlage, injuries., school, etc.

Of the irregular discharges in one record book, there were 6
for "mutiny, 3 for "disobedience", 1 for "impudence", I for
"levitv", 5 for "lying", and 1 for "hvsterical". Other
irregular discharges were for such things as "altering looms
and thinning cloth", "theif and liar", "worthless character",
. Munproper conduct", "profanitv", and "reading in the mill".- —-
~'(Bushman) - -

e 8) Health and Injuries
. inThe health of the 'girls was generally good for the times. They
“‘'were usually in good health when they came from the farms and

dbryufew died or went home sick. Ventilation seemed to be the
rmaln problem. Also, there were common injuries, such as losing
1ta flnger. During that time, typhoid was the major killer
(judqlng from Lowell Corporation llospital records) and con-
sumpulon was next in line. In 1916-17 15.5% of the industries
ahd?unjulreq, 7 9% had faLaL injuries.

' I{rv . .
. -
‘|Thgr% are 1nterest1ng flgures, though, for mortallty bv occupation:

)
‘)’

H

i30ccupatlon‘ . Average Age at Death

i Females in Trades . 39.10 years

¢ u/Sallors ‘ 48,57 years

. Professional Men . _ 52.33 years
)\Farmcrs . 66.29 vears (Bushman)

Thls studv of Fall River and Manchester found that the death

'rdte for women, and especiallv married women, was higher than
ﬁﬁor men in operatlve work -- it is not clear why this was so.
M/'w: ! 9) Overseers and Aqents

. At first the relations of the mill girls with the overseers
nand agents was good. It later deteriorated with the influx

" of immigrant girls and new absentee agents.

Every room in the mills had a first and second. overseer. One
had charged of the carc of the room, taking in the operatives
he wanted, assloning jobs, superintendinca cach p:occcs,’directing
repairs, answering questions, and granting permission of absence.
He sat at a desk near the door where he could see. all who came
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in and went out. He was held responsible for the order and
propricety of his room and for the attention to business. The
management of the mill was dependent on good overscers. There
were many applicants for these posts. Thev were usually married
men with families and were permenent residents of Lowell.

10) Changes in the Mill Girls :
In 1845 there were 6,230 female operatives in Lowell., Of
these 2,276 were connected with Sunday School and 527 had
been teacher ; one~eighth of these girls were from Mass-
achusctts, one-~fourth from Maine, one-third from New Hamsphire,
one-fifth from Vermont, one-fourth from Ireland, and one-
seventeenth from Canada.

Later when wages were reduced and changes began taking place

in the mills, the Yankee farm girls left and Irish immigrant

girls began to replace them. With this change, the character

and reputation of the mill girls also changed. In addition,

new jobs for women began to open up and the Yankee daughters

took advantage of this: the age of the immigrant mill girls

then began. . N ——— e

1

THE LOCKS AND CANALS COMPANY

In 1832 the old charter of the Locks & Canals Company was
reactivated to allow this companv to purchase and hold all
real-estate of the Merrimack Mfg. Company. It was authorized
to sell or lease land and water power. It was responsible for
the maintenance and repair of the canals, dams, bridges over
the canals, and the locks.

By 1835 the Companv also manufactured machinery, railroad

engines and cars, and built complete mills. They had the

largest shop in the country and employed between 500 and

1,200 people. The Company's position in Lowell has been

compared to that of the church in the early settler's communities.
It was the all-powerful institution in Lowell.

Lowell Power Canals

The Pawtucket Canal was widened in 1822 and a series of other
canals were built: the Merrimack Canal in 1822, the Western

Canal, the Estern Canal, the Hamilton Canal, and finally the

Northern Canal in 1874 (the largest of the canals). Locks &

Canals imporved the headwaters of the Mclr1mack 80 as to more
than doulbe the waterpower available.

The canals are a very complicated piece of engineering. Under-
water conduits serve as feeders and for discharge. The Locks &
Canals Company decided and regulated the amount of mill-power
each company would receive. The canals also work on several
different levels. Water wheals were used to turh the mills

and there are still several left. Three gatehounos wore
established to control the flow of water: the Merrimack Street
Gatehouse, the Northern & Western Gatehouse, and tlie Northern
Canal Gatehouse. Lowell has earned her nickname, "Venice of
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America". There are 6 large canals in Lowell (the above Y
mentioned plus the Wamesit Canal) each of which has numerous
branches. In all they cover a total of flve and one half
mlles in length :

In addltlon to the Merrimack there is also the Concord Rlver,
River Meadow Brook, Clav Pit, Black Brook, and Flagg Meadow
whiclk run through Lowell. In former days the whole territory
of Lowcll between the Merrimack and the Concord was a. large
island, made so when the Middlesex'Canal was built., Théte

are a few natural islands in the Merrimack, but the city
itself is made up of 7 different islands (or one large island),
almost all of them heavily populated, made into islands bv L
the canals ‘which intersect the territorv. . e e
The Wamesit Canal (old Whlnple Canal) 1is the one canal Off the
Concord River. It was built by Whipple, Hale and Tileston in
1846 and sold to the Wamesit Power Company in 1865. It has
been used by the Faulkner Mills, the Belvidere Woolen Mills

and U. S. Bunting. N o

Bridges

The Locks & Canals Company has built at least 26 blldqes ..
across the canals; in addition there are 3 bridges across the
Merrimack, 14 across River Meadow Brook, a number across the
Concord, Black Brook, Flagg Mcadow, eLc. The railroad bullt
17 bridges although the corporations furnished the majority.

In all there are, or have been, approximately 186 bridges
built in the area! Most of them were built during this period.
The Pawtucket Bridge was a toll until 1861 when it was made
free -- the toll gates were pulled down by horses amldst the
blare of a brass band! . :

ENGINEERING AND HYDRAULIC ACHIEVEMENTS e

The founders of Lowell tried to stimulate textile manufacturing
by means of the best that science and technology could offer.
Talented and energetic people were invited to the citv. As a
result the town struck visitors as one of youth and progress
(few residents were more than 30 vears old). The residents also
included a large number of mechanics, inventors, engineers, and
soientists. ' o :

Paul Moody,  superintendent of the Merrimack Mfg. Company, did
work on the power loom and found the solution to many: mechanical
problems. The use of leather belts instead of iron gearing

for transmitting motion to the main shafting of a mill was
introduced by Moody in 1828, It was a veryv important improvement
and was entirelv original in its application to the transmission
of 50 or 100 horsepower by a single belt. It was generallv
adopted in the mills of New England.
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Kirk Boott was responsible for bringing many mechanics and
inventors to Lowell. Some were imported from ncarbv textile:
towns and other places in New England Boott brought Elias
Howe who later. invented the sewing machine, Major Whistler,
father of James Whistler, who built steam locomotives, and
Warren Colburn, an educational reformer who lectured on
astronomy, mechanics, ‘and natural history. » |

Early Lowell was particularly distinguished in two technical
fields: -

1) industrial research in ch@mistrv, and

* 2) hydraulics.
The two important figures in each of these fields, Samuel
Luther Dana and J. B. Francis, had significant influence on
the development of the American industrial system.

Samuel Luther Dana

In 1826 Dana was appointed as a chemist to the Merrimack Mfg.
Company (he was a former phvsician of Waltham who firom his
contact with the Boston Manufacturing Companv evolved the
idea of applving chemistrv to industrial research). In 1836
he developed the method known as the "American system of
bleachlng" which was widely used bv his companv. He also
did work in phosphates and was the first to apply chemistry
to agriculture. In addition he studied lead poisoning and
published papers on it, made geological survevs of the state,

P St s e s

and wrote a studv on the manufacture of oil from rosin.

J. B. Francis

Francis came to Lowell in 1834 and at the age of 22 was made
the chief engineer of Locks & Canals., He was an authority
on a great variety of subjects but is best-known for his
experiments in hydraullc motors and the flow of water over
weirs and short canals. 1In 1846 he made the dealgns for the
enlaxgement of water power.

He also constructed the Pawtucket Canal improvements and the
famed Francis Gate (called "Francis' Folly" at the time).

This gate, which can stil) be seen, is a piece of heavy lumber
hanging over the canal lock by an iron strap. It saved Lowell
from several floods.

In 1849 Franics was sent to England to observe methods of

‘'preserving timber from decav and out of that trip grew the

construction of kvanizing works at Lowell, another first.

In 1844 Uriah Boydon designed a turbine for the Appleton
Company; He also designed a dvnamometer and a weir to gauge
the quantitv of water expended. Bovdon also designed a large
number of turbines for different manufacturing companies in
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New England. 1In- 1849 the companies at Lowcll purchased the
right to use all of Boydon's improvements relating to turbines.
Francis then designed and was in charge of the construction of
turbines for the companies. These trubines bear his name.

Francis also did the reconstruction of the dam in 1875. He

did consulting all over the United States, i.e., on the

Trinity Church tower in Boston, on irrigation in California,

and had a great influence on the growth of engineering in
American. His drawings can be found in the Lowell Tech Library.

" Other Important Men

Other important figrues were Samuel Batcheldor, president of
the Hamilton Company who was a prolific inventor of textile
machinery (his dynamometer for the registration of power in
belt-driven machinery was internationallv known), Elisha
BPartlett, the first mavor of Lowell who had formerly taught
medicine at Pittsfield Medical School and who in 1842 published
a study of fevers, and James Storrow, a Harvard-educated. man
who learned engineering under Loammi Bladwin. In 1832 Storrow ~=—=—-
directed the running of the first train from Boston to Lowell.
Later he hoined Boston capitalists who were planning to repeat
the Lowell experienceé ten miles down the river {Lawrence).
Storrow built the -dam there and in 1853 became Lawrence's first
mayor. ‘ '

The Lowell Machine Shop also pioneered in the construction of
locomotives. Manv of the early locomotive engineers were
recruited from mechanics who were associated with the shop.

COMMERCE AND MANUFACTURING

Merrimack Street became the main commercial street. In 1834

. clothing, shoes, silks, shawls, linens, lace, china, West

Inidan goods, drugs, books and "fancv goods" were sold. #2
Merrimack Street had an advertisement for: "seasonable clothing/
oriental dressing gowns/gentlemen's opera tlppets/Indla rubber’
garments".

In addition to the textile indsutry there was a growth in
other manufacturing. In 1824 Lowell Manufacturing Company
with the use of a new automatic carpet loom began the man-
ufacture of carpets that became known all over the United
States. :

In 1843 the Ayer Companv was established. Thev produced
medicinal preparations that were shipped to all parts of

the world. The U.S. Bunting Company in Lowell was the first
company to manufacture the American flay fabric (it had been
imported previously).



In 1834 Major Whistler was brought to Lowell and became
superintendent of the Machine Shop. He designed and built
steam locomotives and was the first in New England to do this.
Whistler left Lowell in 1838 and went to Russia where he in-
troduced railway construction in that country.

The first locomotive built in Lowell in 1835 was named the
"Patrick" after Patrick Jackson and weighed about 9 tons.
Other early locomotives were named "Boston", "Concord",
"Lowell", "Merrimack", and "Nashua".

4) Train Crew
The early engineers, firemen and trainmen ahd a life of
hardship in-cold or stormy weather as there were no cabs on
the locomotive until 1848 -- and no cabooses. Passenger
.crews, rode.on. top,,of .the cars.and.fireight.men rode on the
locomotives. The first engineer was an imported Englishman,
Robinson, who later was replaced by a skilled machanic from
Locks & Canals.

The brakemen applied the brakes, cleaned the car and wheels,
and took care of the stoves. The engineer was responsible
for the entire care of the locomotive. and renewed various
parts. By 1850 cabs' for shelter were provided. The method
of water supply was by a force pump until 1875. The huge
smokestack had to be replenlshed with wood and water along
the way. Coal was not used for fuel until 1858 and not used
on the Boston~Lowell until 1868. '

5) Freight and Passenger Cars
The first freight cars were completelv open and were merelv
a platfrom.on wheels. The merchandise was covered with canvas.
The first freight train had 14 cars and could carry 50 tons.
It also had no brakes!

The first type of passenger car resembled the ordinary stage-~
coach mounted on a frame with wheels for the rails. There
were three compartments each with passengers sitting back to
back and there was a seat on the roof for the:conductor who
whistled when the hand brakes were to be applied. The com-
partments were not lighted or heated.

The Boston-Lowell was a short link in the "Great Northern
Route" between Boston and Canada. In 1851 the passenger cars
between Boston and Montreal were stuffy and uncomfortable.

By the middle 1850's they were improved and had flat roofs,
small windows which rattled incessantly, and seats upholstered
in black haricloth. There were iron stoves in the middle of
the car for heat and two small whale-oil lamps. The second-
class car had back-to-back seats and half-price fares plus a
compartment for baggage. There was one such car which was
ironically nicknamed "The Belvidere".



) S1r6) ‘Stations and-Ticketing

‘he (Theroldrrailroadistation. wascatiMeritimack vandcDuttoncStreets
wheyowherevthe YMCA:nowcstands: s Thisrrailroadistationcwas:terected
on Mcon:Merrimack Street&in . 1852, ;oItiwas tbuillthso that pdrt of
the cthetdepot ' could be used ds' ar"city "halltha uTherupper floor
vae (was- anlargetaudltorlumt(Huntlngton Hall). hbvItieburnedwand was
rebuirebuilt cin 1897randcburnedragain 5ii.1903n Then it:was re-
rac-placedrbyvthe .YMCA.r There.was alSOﬁaL"NortherndDepol" on
4wad1M1ddlesex(Street.

giote gTheyeanlyrnaxlroadctickets:Werehcardboard~wiwhnthefneme of
tiie cthe:stationron:one sidecandlonctherother side some. sdrt of
hierchieroglyphic¢siwhich :wascsupposedrtocprevént them fromgbeing
coutrcoutnerfeited! cvAfter ccollectionltby cthevconductotrs,;s they
ware Wwerechanded backitotthecticket cofficesvand used over and
over overragainercThere were also season¢ticketscfor:onec:passage
G:i1vdaily. ie¢In 1844 ithe fare from-Boston to iLowell:wascreduced
Lo 5tQ 75¢. 1:In 1845:it:wasreduded: “to:65¢ “and fin 1848Cto 50¢.

7) AcT).cAccidents
-1 :In 1838-therseconditrack iwds laid.andlinsthe same' yéar the
~aomNashua-Lowell yRailyoad copened with ithe farécdat'50¢:. with one
~ .- .xun eachway. dally”qfln 1841 a-disastrous ‘collisionioccurred.
2. 'On/thec4th:of Julyfreight cars were used. to make: room for
<.1.<alliofﬁthexpassengers:andwanaextraptrain;fromﬂﬁowelizwas run
m‘«into onwagcurvezby the regular train from NashuarQJSeveral

;;,n(belngkrun by~aretagecoach drlver and the extra traln by a .
e p-mechanic: from; & road irepainm.shop.

- "z JThe-Boston-Lowell had norseriouscaccidents ‘until 1868 when
;hh thewlocomotlve;T"Wllllam\Struqls"*rexploded in*the Mlddlesex
o o.Street-Stationiand killed:its. englneer.

4, R:8) ‘Races 'and Records
A famous locomotive race took-place :onthe: Boston—Lowell

run in 1851, Thousands ofhpeople gathered. to-iwatch the 51x
entries,

“There were :4-.daily:traing sin 1835 iand they: wereiincreased to
15daily :in .1851. :+In 1850 .the .engine, "The; Whistler!,: made
. -the :run-to Boston‘in 28 minutes! . It: rseems (rather.:strange |
-.. that (the. oldxatlantlc-type of rsteamrlocomotive was..faster
. i, than today's (diesel! '

o) M9);‘Mergers
:Lp(vLater1therBostondLowelleallroad ‘realized the 1mpract1callty
©  of :isolationism:and:began:aseries of -mergers. 1:In 1887 it

4. was  leased to: the'Bostonx&zMalne ‘which rnow owns (and . .operates
it. : ,

v .: _.The - rallroad dream thad rtaken -the-place !of (the ‘canal :dream. It
... was. ameans; of. maklnq ‘the<industrial -centers more- important
and an&’awmeans of. opening.up :new: rural:-areas.. The - -introduction
m[ ~of thevrallroad into rthe-iMerrimack .Valley coincided: wmth the
beglnnlngkpf-Merrlmackclndustrv.
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RELIGION AND CHURCHES

1) The Merrimack Religious Societv
In 1824 the Merrimack Religious Society was started. Services
were held in the schoolhouse on Merrimack Street (where the

Green School is) and the first minister was Rev. Theodore
Edson.

2) St. Anne's Church
In 1826 St. Anne's Church was built. It was named after Kirk
Boott's wife and built from stone in the bottom of the canals.
Since Boott was Episcopalian so was this church. Boott
decreed that all operatives muct go to his church and also
pay 37¢ a month for its upkeep. This did not last long due
. to the founding of a number of other Protestant Churches.
St. Anne's chimes were dedicated in 1867. There were eleven
bells that were cast in Troy, New York.

3) St. Patrick's Church
St. Patrick's Church is closelv identified with the development
of the Irish community. In 1833 the Irish built their first
church in the original Acre area but it was destroyed by fire.
Native Yankees tried to wreck the Acre and the new St. Patrick's
Church and a riot ensued. The present structure was erected in
1854 by the Irish residents.

4) Opposition Among Sects
This was a period of opposition between different sects.
Universalism had become popular, but it frightened the other
sects and their ministers preacherd against the new doctrine.
"Infidel" and "atheist" were applied to it. Doctrinal feeling
was strong and young people who went with the "awful Univer-
salists" were looked down upon. Unitarians also came under the
ban. Harriet Robinson (Loom and Spindle) had joined the
Congregational Church but later she decided she didn't like
it and stopped attending. For this she was excommunicated
and ostracized by society. .

EDUCATION

In 1822 the territorv of Lowell was one school district with
two schoolhouses, one near the Pound and the other at Pawtucket
Falls near, the Stone House. The first act of the Merrimack
Manufacturing Company was to put up a school for the girls

on Merrimack Street. The corporation paid the whole expense
and put Rev. Edson in charge.

Edson vs. the Corporation

At the first town meeting in 1826 a committee was appointed:
Edson, John Green, Warren Colburn, Elisha Bartlett, and Sam
Batcheldor. They were to divide the town into school districts.
Six school district were, as a result, formed:
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1) Green Schoolhouse

2) Falls Schoolhouse

3) The .school near the Pound

4) The school near Hale's Mill ("Red Schoolhouse")
5) The school west of Central Street

6) The school on Central Street

$1,000 was allotted for the support of the schools. District
committees were established to kecep the schoolhouses in order,
to select and contract a schoolmaster, and etc. The district
committees also claimed the right to choose what books were

. used, and disputes arose between the general school committee
and the district committees. :

In 1832 the district system was abolished and a contest arose
between Kirk Boott and Edson. At a town meeting to authorize
the loan of $20,000 for the building of two large schoolhouses,
Edson favored the motion and was opposed by the entire corpor-
ation, led by Boott. Boott declared that the schools were good
enough and that ministers were not suitable persons to

manage the expenditures of a town. Edson said that if business ~
men would acquiant themselves with the needs of the schools,
the minister would be glad to vield to them. In the end,

money for the buildihg of North and South grammar schools was
appropriated. Boott, as a result, withdrew from St. Anne's
Church and for several years the corporation took no interest
in the .public schools! ‘

The Public Grammar Schools

The Companies thus far had provided almost wholly for the
education of the children of those persons in their employment.
Dr. Edson argued that the well-being of the whole community
would be promoted by the advancement of common schools.,

1) The Merrimack School began in 1829 with 165 pupils.
In 1833 it moved to the new North School house and has had
a succession of different names since, the last being the
Bartlett School. ' :

2) The Edscn School opened in a small house on the corner
0of South and Middlesex Streets in 1827 but it later moved
fova new schoolhouse on the South Common.

3f The Colburn School was established in 1848,

4) The Varnum School begah in 1851.

5) The Washington School began in 1834 and was eventually
united with the Edson School.

6) The Franklin School started in 1839 on Middlesex Street
and was eventually merged with the Highland Grammar School.

7) The Moody School began in 1841.
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‘ 8) The Green School was established in 1841 and first
situated on Middle Street. It moved to its present location
in 1868.

Schools for the Irish

Up until 1840 attempts to establish a school in the Acre were
sustained chiefly by individual benecvolence. For instance,
in 1830 an article was passed to establish a separate school
for the Irish and $50 was appropriated but it was kept only
part of the time and later the school was suspended. Schools

were carried on at various times in rooms under the Catholic
Church.

Finally two Catholic schools were united in 1838 to form the
Lewis Street School (later called the Mann School). From
1838-1851 669 pupils of this school received certificates to
enter the mills (there were 2,070 pupils from all the schools
during this period).

Salaries

In 1835 the salaries fixed by the school committees were:

Principal of High School $1,000
Assistant : 500 -
Grammar Master ’ 600
Male Assistants 350
Female Assistants 175,

By 1852 these salaries had gone up to $1,800 for Principal,
$1,000 for Grammar Master and $600 for Female Assistants.

Lowell High School

The Lowell High School's early years were of a nomadic character.
The high school was first organized in December 1831 under 30
year old Thomas Clark as Principal with 47 pupils. Its first
sessions were held in a building at the corner of Eliot and
Middlesex Streets. Three of Rev. Clark's students were General
Butler, Gustavus Fox, and Governor Straw (New Hampshire)..

Later the school was moved to the Free Chapel, then to the
Edson School building, and later they reopened in Concert Hall
on Merrimack Street. After several more moves, including a
few attic lofts, they eventually moved to Kirk Street where

in 1840 a new school building was built.

In the early days of its existence, some of the boys were only
9 or 10 years old. The average age was 13 vyears and 9 months.
However, by 1883 the minimum age was 12 years and the average

age was 15 years and 8 mopths.
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In the beginning of its davs no diplomas were issued and pupils
were admitted four times a year. The earlv examinations of
applicants were conducted orally bv a committee and rarelv was
an applicant rejected. Students were not compellpd to take

any prescribed course of studvy and could remain as long as

they wished. Some continued on for six or seven vears. They
could also graduate when thev pleased by simplv dropping out
without a ceremony. In the earlv days a weekly paper was
published with poems, essavs, and dislogues in French.

As the number of applicants increased, a written test was used
. for admission. Then came the custom of awarding diplomas and
having graduation classes in 1858. In theée early vyears a
catalogue containing a minute report of the standing of each
pupil was published at the close of every term. This practice
was finally discontinued and in its place, monthly reports
were sent to the parents. In 1863 alumni associations were
formed and reunions were held in Huntington Hall.

Prior to the building of the new school building in 1840,
boys and girls had been in the same room. In the new school,
however, females were separated entirely from the males,
entering from a different street and occupying different
rooms. The organization of the school also changed. Up
until 1840 only male teachers had keen emploved. Now two
female teachers were introduced, one as Principal and one

as; Assistant, in the Female Department. There was also a
male principal. Other teachers were: "Teacher of Math",
"Teacher of Languages", and "Teacher of Natural Science".

In 1867 the school was transformed into its present condition.
Since that time, there has been no separate female department.
Scholars were seated in different study rooms and the sexes
mixed. <Classes also were mixed so that the teachers had to
teach a variety of studiés. In 1844 music was introduced into
the school. French was taught by special teachers in 1848,
1869, and 1874. Drawing was introduced in 1867. Since 1837
the schools of Lowell were reguired to open the mornlng exer-
cises with devotional exerc1ses.

CULTURE AND LITERARY ASSOCIATIONS

1) Reading and Writing Cot
Reading was the prime recreation among the mill girls. Seven
journals were printed in Lowell and one boardinghouse regularly
subscribed to 15 newspapers and periodicals. The mill girls
attended “improvement circles" ( a group that read pieces they
had written), the Lyceum Lectures (the cost was 50¢ for 25
lectures, which included Emerson), and some also had time to
write during their days ih the mills. The famous "Lowell
Offering" was written byv mill girls and was reviewed by the
London Times as well as sent to French deputies.

2) Newspaper and Magazines
There were a number of newspaper published in Lowell. "Vox
Populi” ‘began in 1841 and was opposed to the “ruling interests"
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The "Lowell Courler" vas the neWSpaper of the corporailon and T
defended the factory system. .- ‘,- e
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In 1842 the following papers and maga21nes were Dublnshed 1n\“~*j

Lowell: Lowell Courier (triweekly), Lowell’ Journal (weekly),.

Lowell Advertiser (triweekly), Lowell Patrlot (weekly), Soﬁnd

of wruth, Star of Bethlehem, Zion's Banner, therary Souvenir,

The L‘qles Pearl (published local literature and lad 4, 000

subscripers), and The Lowell OFferlng. L 5.
. .
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3) Poets and Authofs N N
From its early davs Lowell has had many local pdets.\ One of
the most well-known was Lucy Larcom of "Lowell. Offerlng" fame.
Lucy Larcom-Park in Lowell was® némed in hgr honor. John G.
Whittier at one time resided in Lowell as editor of the Middlesex
Standard. He wrote manv poems about the Merrimack River and
the poem "Snowbound" is about Harriet Livermore of the famoubs i
Livermore family in Lowell. Emerson and Thoreau were also of o
this era. Thoreau in particular wrote about the Merrimack.
Chevalier, Dickens, and DeTocqueville all visited Lowell and . =
wrote about it, marveling at its moral tone and amazifg.progressw

. 4) Artists AN
Artists James Whistler and David Neal were both ‘born in Lowell.
The "pioneer sculptress", Margaret Foley, worked for a. vear.or
more in a spinning room of the Merrimack Corporation and was
one of the contributors to the Lowell Offering. Thomas B,
Lawson made his home in Lowell. He was well-known as -a’ nortralt
painter and Daniel Webster, Henrv.Clav, Whlttler, and many of
the mavors of Lowell sat fo im. ~ Sarah Whitman, tho palnted
Bishop Brooks and Olgxér—ﬂe nd&T 1. homes and made the de51gnq
for the memorial windows in Memorial Hall in Cambridge, . llved )
in Lo%g;lndartng her girlhood. . o
' S 5) Music and Theater -
The first musical society was established in 1824 and called
the Beethoven Musical Society. 'In 1827 the first professional
entertainer in Lowell, a magician, performed in the 01d Liver-
more Tavern. The flrst theater was located where the Hlldreth
Building is today.

6) Famous People Visiting Lowell

Davy Crockett, 1834
Lafayette

Charles Dickens

Michael Chevalier, 1833
DeTocqueville

President Jackson, 1833
President Roosevelt

E. A. Poe

Henry Clay, 1833
Alexander Bell
Presidents Polk, Pierce, Tyler, Van Buren, Lincoln, and Grant
A Chinese Legation :
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7) Celebrations

Dedication of St. Anne's Chimes

Lowell Manufacturing Companv picnic for the other
' corporatlons (5,000 attended)

Andrew Jackson's visit and parade

4th of July celebrations on South Common

Centennial Celebration

CIVIC AND POLITICAL LIFE

1) Polltlcs
Early towell was . contrblled by Yankee executives and resg dents.
In 1836 thé mayoralty svstem was adopted. During the 1840's
the politicians split into two factlons. coroporation and
anit-corporation. . .

2) Civic Leaders
Street names reflect some of the early civic leaders (pioneers
in industry): Boott, Jackson, Moodv, Appleton, Worthen, Tyler.
Prominent men in politics at the time were: . Judge Livermore
(Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of New Hampshire who gave
Belvidere its name), Governor: John Nesmith, General Benjamin
Butler (Governor of Massachusetts), Judge Josiah,Abbott (a
famous lawyer who married one of"’ the Livermore daughters)
and Gustavus Fox (Secretarv of the Navy). :

3) City Development
The city fathers accepted communal activities as humdrum
occupations so thev were not glorified architecturally. Street
development did not begin until 1845 when the Locks & Canals
Company put land on sale. From 1845-1865 there was a great
amount of building and rebuilding activity.

4) Hospital
The corporation started the first industrial hosoltal in the
United States at the spot where St. Joseph's is now located.
It cost 10¢ a day for a bed in the hospital.

5) Fire Department
The Fire Department was established-in 1829. At first the chain
lire was uzed (everv man with a bucket). The alarm was souhded
by the ringing of the church bells. Later a bell wds hung in
the police station and eventually moved to the fire station on
Middle and Palmer Streets.

6) Library
The Lowell Clty Library was bullt in 1844 and cost 50¢ a year
for dues.

7) Recreational Facilities
Beginning in 1844 the city provided recreational facilities:
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Lucy Larcom Park (1844), North and South Commons (1845), Belvidere
Park (1860), Shedd Park (1862), and Fort Hill Park which used to
be a zoo (1866).

SOCIAL STRUCTURE

' 1) Classes
The city was organized from the beginning into five distinct
classes:

1) An oligarchy of corporation executives under Boott's
leadership; :

2) A gentry of skilled employees (junior executives to
foremen) ;

3) The mill hands (farm girls responsible for production);

4) The day laborers (the proletariat of Irish immigrants
who dug the canals and etc.

5) The settlers (lawyers, iminsters, tradesmen).

2) The Mill Girls
The mill girls received better wages than most women received
in other occupations and manv were earning money to educate
members of their family. The work was light and not tiring
and the 12 hour day was not uncommon then. There were also
sa>z:ral and literary advantages for the girls in Lowell and many
¢ i them were active in church meetings and social occasions.
"hey taught in the Sunday Schools, went to lectures, the theater,
had picnics at the river, and enjoyved the endless stream of visitors
to Lowell.
F2malas outnumbered the males 3 to 1 since there were few jobs
“r. wmen and it is reputed that a man named Mercer Bells heard
“oout all the unattached females in Lowell and came for a visit
-t oring back 19 girls for the Oregon pioneers!

3) Irish Laborers
Tere were manv foreigners in the city and visitors came from
z.4 over the world. The Irish immigrants first came in 1822 when
they heard of jobs in the mills. They walked all the wav to
Lowell from Charlestown. Later they wrote their relatives in
Treland, ‘
The Irish were forced to live in wooden shacks as no housing had
been planned for them. After 1845 the competition between rival
mills increased and the companies began exploiting the workers
for their own prosperity. Working conditions began to deteriorate
and the immigrant Irish girls eventually took the place of the
Yankee girls in the mills.

4) Changes
The changeq began after 1845. There were new executives, a
groviing competition and resulting exploitation of workers, and
a growing resentment at subservience to the mills.
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New struggles ensued between compctlng Concorn and variousg
groups:

1) Mill against mill

2) Town against town

3) Mill vs. town

4) Employers vs. emplovees

The lanrge corporations attemtped to control every activity and
institution. 1In the early davs there was a feeling of respectful
equality between all of-the workers (the foremen and operatives
were often of the same class) and the emplOYers were interegted
in the welfare of the girls. Lowell became a "purveyor town"

That is, the people owed their existence to the presence of an
institution and their existence was completely focused on the
running and supplying of that institution. (Coolidge)

ARCHITECTURE

1) Corporation Housing
The Merrimack Manufacturing Companv undertook to provide hou51ng
for the executives, skilled workers, and the mill hands. The
dwellings were arranged in a compact group near the mills due
to the long working days. They were well-constructed and well-
maintained. The various tvpes of accomodation were strictly
segregated. Luxuries in housing were doled out in proportion
to the recipient's 1mportance.

2) Boardinghouses
The girls' boardinighouses housed at least 30 glrla and there were
usually eight or more boardinghouses to a ﬁlngle block. They
were two and a half or three story buildings with usually six
qirls to a room. The girls paid $1.25 per week for room and
hoard arnd were éUpeerSed by an older womarn.

The best exanple of & preserved boardinghouse today is the one

on Cabot Street. Lowell Day Nufséry Building was built in 1823
by the Merrimack Manufacturing Company £for the use of 1ts agents.
There ig also the Ycr;ck Club at 91 Dutteri which is an example

of a mill overSeer § home.

B 3) Day Laborers' Housing
The housing of the day laborers (Irish immigrants) was not planned
for and was a disgrace. Thev elustered aboiit St. Patrieck's
Church in "New Dublin", about an acére of lant to 500 irish. The
squalor had deepened considerably by 1850.

4) Mills
The factories were remarkable for their size and the manner in
which they were grouped. They weré also noted for the way the
mill year was intergrated with the hotising. The mills were five
stories high and had water wheels in the basements.
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The Boott Mill is the most interesting surviving example of the
mill buildings. The courtyard still retains the basic character
of the 19th century.

5) Private Residences and Inns

BUTLER HOUSE (333 Andover Street) built in 1843. This house was
the home of a very prominent figure in national, state, and local
history. Butler was a lawyer, statesman, and soldier who
befriended the Negroes and millworkers. He led a one-man crusade
against the mill corporation in the 1840's. ¥He won infamy in the
South for his brutal tactics against the populace and the
Confederate Army during the Civil War. Later he was Governor of
Massachusetts and alsc a United States Senator. He is reputed to
have been one of the leaders of the impeachment movement against
Andrev Johnson. He is buried in the Hildreth family cemetery.

STONE HOQUSE (267 Pawtucket Street) built in 1825. It has been
used as a tavern and a hotel. Presentiy it is owned by St. Joseph's
Hospital and is known today as Bachand Hall. In the past it was
also called the Ayer Home as it was owned and remodeled by James
G. Ayer. Its original name was Coburn's Tavern and in 1826 a
town meeting was held in the building at which the inhabitants
accepted legislation incorporating Lowell as a town. It was
bvilt as a family hotel, the first hotel to be built in Lowell.
Its location was very convenient and it was always crowded.
Guests included visiting stockholders for the mills. Formerly
there were long balconies facing the river from which visito¢s
could enjoy a view of the rapids. ;

AYER HOUSE (corner of Pawtucket and School Streets) built in the
mid 1800's. This was the home of Frederick Ayer and the site of
‘Phineas Whiting's store and Wennalancet's wigwam. It is now
known as the Franco-American Schecol,

TYLER MANSION (16 Tyler Parkway) Lkuilt around the 1840's, Nathan
Tyler originally built a hcuse near Merrimack Square from lumber
obtained at the sawmill at Pawtucket Falls., Later he sold part of
his estate to the Mervimack Compary and hailt another house in
Middlesex Village. It was one of the most distinguished houses

in the Highlands during the mid-)9th cenvuary. 7Tyvler was a
prominent man in the textile industry., He gave some of his land,
opposite the house, for a park.

THE MANSE (282 Andover Street) built in 1845. This house was
~ built by Rev. Edson ard served from time to time as a residence
of various mill agents. It is a good example of residential
architecture during the early 1800's.

NESMITH HOUSE (216 Nesmith Street) was built in 1641.
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WHISTLER HOUSE (243 Worthen Street) built in 1825 by Paul Moody.
This house comumemcrates the birthplace of artist James Whistler
who spent his first years in this house. - It bzcame the home of
the Whistler family in the 1840's. At one time James B. Francis
also lived here. Presently it is used as a museum and an art
gallery and is owned by the Lowell Historical Societv. i
OLD WORTHEN TAVERN (141-147 Worthen Street) built in 1841 and
used as a tavern and an inn. This has long been a place for
social gatherings and at one time it had rooms for visitors.
It is still a favored gathering place. It is an example of
construction in the core area of Lowell in the mid-nineteenth

'6) Other Buildings

OLD CITY HALL (Merrimack Street across from St. Anne's) built in
1830. The lower floor and cellar were designed to.be renited out

for commercial uses. The meetinghouse was on the second floor.

In 1844 one of the stores on the first floor was eliminated and
‘the space was made into the City School Library. Later it was
used for & hotel. The old city hall was vacated in 1893 when
the new city hall was built. Alterations have mzde the present
appearance considerablv different from thkat of 183G,

LOWELL DAY NURSERY (119 Hall Street) built in 1823. This iz an
example of a mill-agent's residence. It was built by the
Merrimack Company £or tha use of the company'z resident agentg.
It continued to be used by various mill agents for :the compeny
throughout the 19th and early 20th century. In 1945 the building
was so0ld to the Lowell Day Nursery. The building r=ztained il
Qistinctive 12th century stvle. ;

YORICK CLUB {91 Dutton Street). This building is &1 example of -

a mill overseer’s home. Later the Yorick Club, organized a: a
young men's social club in 1882, bought it.. (

HILDRETH BUILDING built in 18584 is tha‘site of the 01d Museum
Building which was built\lﬁ 1837 as a place of worship for the
Freewill Baptist Society. Eventually it was cmnvertﬁd into a
‘theater, museum, lecture hall, and ot;mces.

LOWELL CORPORATION HOSPITAL buxlt in 183% by the corporation is
at the site of St., Joseph’s Hospital. It was much spoken of by

-Charles Dickens during his visit to Lowell., It estaslished a

trazining school for nurses and opened an gutpatient department.
Operatives without means were treated free.
AN IMPRESSION OF LOWELL

In 1825 the editor of the Essex Gazette in Salem desc:ibed Lowell

1
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v at that time:

"As we ascanded the high grounds which lie on the side of the °
Merrimack, the beautiful valley which has been chosen for the
site of manufacturing establishments opened upon our view,

It is indeed a fairy scene. Here we beheld an extensive city,
busv, moisy and thriving, with immense prospects of increasing
axtent and boundless weaith . . .

On the banks of the Merrimack ave already three superb factories
and tweo immense piles of brick buildings for calico-printing.

In front of these, on the banks of the factorv canal which is

fences in and ornamented with a row of elms, are situated the
houses ¢f the people. They are handsomely and uniformly painted,
with flower gardens in front, and separated by wide avenues.

There is a beautiful Gothic stone church opposite the dwelling-~
houses, and a parsonage of stone. . . There is a post office,
fine taverns, one of which is a superb stone edifice with out~
buildings of the =zame materiesls, and perhaps 200 houses all fresh
from the hands of the workmen. :

The ground is intersected with fine roads and good bridges. The
whole 'seems like enchantment. About 300 persons, two-thirds of
whom are females, young women from the neighboring towns, are
dmploved. The women earn from & dollar to two dollars a week,
according to skill. ‘ -

We stood gazing at this fairv vision at the distance of a mile.
The roar of the waterfalls is intexrmingled with the hum and
buzz of machinery. There seemed to be a sone of triumph and
exultation at the successful union of nature with the art of
man. . o ‘ .

———
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' B, DECLINES OF TEE MILLS (Post Civil War to Present)

After the Civil War the mills beganm to decline until the textile

industry left Lowell. . The railroad alse lost itz impact and
trucking bhecame more important. Social changes occurred with

these economic changes, Most important was the heavy immigration
of various ethnic groups toc the eity.

USE OF THE MERRIMACK =

With the advent of electric power, the river was decreasingly
used for power. The canals became an anachronism.:s far as

power was concerned. Follution of the river by the mills in
particular has mede it unusable for fishing and swimming.

People living directly over the vanals used them at garbage dumps.

- The Merrimack was used a3 a source of public water from 1870 to

18922, However, with the increasing pollution this had to be
abandoned. In the 1880's the river was still used vYor sports,
particularly boat racing. ‘

CIVIL WAR

This period begins with the Civil War. Many men fron Lowell
fought in the war. Brigadier General Butler was the leader of
four regiments. The first Lowell men to be killed were Ladé
&nd Whitney and the monument near City Hall bears thpir names.,

At the opening of the war the @ilis were clogsed down and the
Yankee farm girls were forced to return home. This caused a
break of 8 years in the economic life of Lowell,

PECLINING GROWTH

1855-1865 The population of Lowell declined fny the
firgt time,

1912 - =~ ©Population was over 100,000

1920-1930 Pcpulation declined by 12,000

1918 490 /000 workers
1919 36,000 workers
1936 15,000 workers
1925 1,200,000 spindles and 26,000 looms

1936 250,000 spindles and ¢,000 looms
Fotal value of manufactured produscts:

i918 " Fifth of the cities in Massachusetts
1836 Ninth of the cities in Massachusetts




v

s 2

- R g T 7

E»DNOMY

‘, Th@ city 2 aconemy had expamded vearlv until 1857 when the first

recession hit. By 1900 the city was increasingly being controlled
by stockholders outside the community. In 1911 three-fourths of
the mill profits and 9ne~tenth ot the mill wages left the city.

During the mid-1920's Lowell finallv began to pay the price of :
overdepenience on sne single industry. Mills began to ¢lose |

©down and the rextile industrv migrated southward to lower wages, ' -
" All of the mills either moved, closed dcwn, or curtailed product10n.¢

‘In 1929 the stack market crash hlt,hatd and there was economic -

instability for the next twe decades. Employment within the
textile induséry plummeted to less than 108 of the 1924 peak.

" Then in 1936 the worst flood in Lowell's history hit the city. .

During the war years the emleﬁlng industries were converted t
war production. The city's economy has been stdblll ;ing over
the last thlrty years.

< [ T o
REASONS FOR DECLINE )

1) Env1ronmﬂntal F@atures

?he enVLronmental featurea of Lowell came to assume less 1mportance._

The advantages that Lowell cnce had lost their significance.

”]Naturalrpowmr was replaced by modern aelectrical power and thus the
~ chief location factor became not the source of energy but the EE
-transportation facilities. Lowell's inland position became a

probler. Transportation developed elsewhere and the use of

- trucking detrac*ed from meell's being at the :a11 foci.

2! Labog gnd Working Condltxons

The competition that ierced executlves to economize also cééated
worsened working conditions. The New England farm girls gradually
left and their places were taken bv the immigrant girls. ‘his =
heralded the beginning of ethnic problems for Lowell, Aalsc
lahor Costs controlled efficiency and New England textile :
towns could not compete with the Sﬁuthern mills and thewr lover
standard of llvinq, -

1) Change in Han&gemant
5 4 :
After the Civil War thers was alsc a revolution in management

. and new principles of administration were adopted. For the

first 20 vears Lowell was guided by a profitable materna11sm,

‘But after 1845 and espetially after the Civil War Lowe}l fell ,
to’ hew agents and nepotlstzc mismanaqement. : T a

A

o meman







Renfrewshire.

Louis Bergeren was the»firet French Canadian to come to Lowell

carpenters.

51.

In 18253 the Merrlmack‘Companv was required to employ skilled
artisans of Manches;@r in printing thelr calicos. They obtained
John Prince in 1826 as the superintendent of the Print Works.

He demanded a $5,000 a year salary and got it. Soon other men
from Lancashire followed and were employed almost exclusively

in the Print Works (designing, engraving, and printing). Prince
was superintendent until 1855 and received Mrs. Trollope when
she visited Lowell. Canqr&ssman Greenhalge was also a natlvn

of Ldnﬂashlre, ; P '
The manufacture of 1ngra1n carpets was introduced in Medway
before Lowell and the men who introduced this were natives of
“All the early managers and overseers of the
carpet company were from Renfrewshire and called "Paisley Men".
The .Gloucestershire immlgratlan datss from 1837. These men were
engaged bv the Middlesex Company. John Pitt, a son of the famous
William Pitt, Prime Minister of Great Britain during the wars of
Napoleon, settled in Lowell°

French Canadians

11) Immigration

in 1841. By 1852 there were 8 more. Several lived in the
boardinghouse on Middlesex Street. Bv 1860 there were 15 more.
Louis Bergeron was a blacksmith and the others were malnly
The frist French Canadians were engaged in construction
work and worked mainiy on the canal. The first French Canadian
doctor, Dr. Mighault, came in 1859. Between 18490 and 1850 the
immigrants who came were the "pioneers". More followed in 1850~
1860. |

. i
The f£irst wave of Fr ench Canadian 1mm;grat10n ceased with the
Civil War in 1861. Ten Canadians took part in the war.
Prosperity returned in. 1869. The population had been reduced
by the war and now the corporations were wild for labor.

Mill agents from Lawell were all over Canada t¢rying to induce
French Canadians to come. The agents gave descriptions of the
good salaries and.the good life in Lowell, During the 1860's
salaries in Canada were very low {day laborers were paid 25¢
a day) and everyone discussed the prosperity of the United
States. Alszo old rural Quebec was becoming staturated -~ the.
land could not sustain the large families and there was not
enough work (machinery had replaced men). There were alsc the
tariff policies of Canada which limited the market of Canadian
farmers. -Canadian industries were developing lrregularlyq All
this led to "U. S@“fever" or the "American illness®.

| ‘

1

|

|

|
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There was massive immigration from Quebec in 1870. The
Canadian parishes were depopulatad. Emigration came by the car
loads. In one month during 1868, 2,300 immigrants coming to
New England factories crossed over Lhe St. Alban, Vermont
border. HMost did not- speak English.

2) The Parish -

The ideal of the Frenchicommunlty is to maintain the. customs.
First comes the church, then the school, then the cemetery,
bank, hospital, orphanage, literary and cultural clubs.

The parish in Canada had alwavs plaved a unique role. The
parish helonged to the people and it embodied the aspirations
of the French Canadlans« It was decided in 1866 to found a
parish in Lowell, but it did not work out:. 1In 1866~68 the
Canadian populatlon of the dioces had doubled. The Bishop
of Burlington, Vermont urged the establishment of a parish,

Finally in 1868 two priests arrived to found the church. The
cost of the church which was bought on Lee Street (St. Joseph's)
was $11,500. The people were very poor =-- most worked in the
mills. But in two or three weeks the priests had raised

$6,000 for the church. Money was raised by renting pew seats
by the year. The first celebration was held in 1868.

4\

'3) Societies

Two French Canadian societies were founded in 1868, the St.
John the Baptlst Society for benevolent work and the Canadian
French Institute of Lowsll (1868~6Y) which was a literary and
political association te¢ preserve French. It had a reading
room and a night school where 'thev caught French. . However, -
the Institute lasted cnly a year.

In 1868 there was a 5001pf1 founded to work for the independence
of Canada. Also in that year a mutual insurance association

was founded pius sports iclubs and reading rooms. In 1871 the
second mutusl insurance association was founded, St. Joseph's
Union, which can still bn seen on Dutton Street.

4) Cultural Activities )

St. Joseph's Church was the pivot of all activities. Here new
arrivals met with employees on the church steps on Sunday. The
pastor also used the church as a post office as no one in the
city post office could read French.

. | "
St. Joseph's he=ld celebrations and plays in the cellar. The first
French play was given in 1870. 1In 1873 the convention of French
Canadians was held in Lowmll and pecple came from all over New

“
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England. There waz & parade with 1,500 persons and a patriotic
fervor which unitad the Canadians. 2 French play in 1881 had
1,000 gpectators. A library in the boys's school had 300 -
volumes. ' '

Tha first newspaper, "L'abeille”, was founded in 1981. It became
the first French Canadian dialy in the United States. There were
12 different newspapers over the years.

]

) 5) Education

In 1875 the priest gave French lessons in the celler of the .
church. In 1876 a night school was organized im the cellar. 1In
1881 the city opsned French evening classes at the Common Street
School and 460 children turned up. The classes employed 20
French teachers per year.

Finally the parish French school was opened in 1833 which teok
boys up to 12 yeaxs of sge. It was the first French parochial
school in the Archdiocese of Boston. 2another grammar zchool
for boys was built on Merrimack Street in 1832 so the school on
Moody Street became a school for girls. In 1891 there were
1,200 children in the parish schocls and 1,043 in the public
schools., ' ‘

The French were very interested in elementary‘eddcation,but
not in highev educaticn (as opposed to the Greeks). They were
essentially a working population and the children were sent gff
to work whe: they were of high school age in order to help
support th:s large families.

£} The Anglicazation Movement -

n 1877 tie anglicazation movemen®: hegan, The French Protastant
Church w:s established in Lowell with about 200~300 people, It
died ocut in 1910 because it blended in with the other Protestant
churchez and because the French members didn't feel part of the -
French community -~ they couldn't belong to all the French
societi's and clubs because they weren't Catholic. Also the
church 1ad no school connected with it. The French Protestants
also started a college in Lowell. It was later moved to Spring-
field vhere it is known today as the American International
Collect. " )

7) Life in 1872

In »i72 the parish census indicated that there was a French |
Cansdian population of about 3,700. A1 apartment for a family

- et §8 a month and 2 pound of salt pork cost 11¢. A day

tiborer made §1.75 per day and a ten vear c¢ld girl could eazn
*3.¢5 per week in the mills. Play tickets weve 25¢, TImmigration
hzgan to stabilize. Children of ten and eleven worked in the

mills so there were entire French Canadian families working in
the miils. . ‘




-

lfThe first wave of 1mmigrants wantad to goiback to Quebec, buﬁ)
by #he 1889's the Freach Canadians were in Lowell to stay and

QﬁLittle Canada was established on ampty: Land. In 1875 Sawmuel :
'Marin had built the first bleck in Little Canada on Aiken -

ko Moant\washlngton, Co T e

‘,ln Paris and later wrote for the New Yor&er._ ‘There have been .

believed in the “sanctity of work™. - The French Canadians were

. succeeded in bec&minq nationalized (134 were in business or

‘By 1930 people of Canadian birth and parentage made up one-

.The majoritv aE the DOpUlattoﬂ LS ‘now on the other ezde of

been some atraln with the Irish. . .
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- 8) Preach Canadxan Workers T
btrmkes 'were not frequent among the' French Canadalna. The mill Lo
agents liked the ?rench Canadains because they were a conservative, e
docile labor force, gy'were largely a farm population and }
their clgrgy who kept them in tow were also counservative and

good workers. Work was abundant and life was rmlat;vely easy
in campaxison with farm 1Lfe - ;

§

9) French Enter Lowell Life '\ﬁ S

were not interested in moving back to Canada,  Immigrétion was
strong until 1210. It reached its peak in 1895 with 20,000
becoming yermanent residents. In 1881 232 French cCanadians had

industry, 7 in muniecipal qcvernment,‘83 taxpavers, and 6 mill /;
overseers). In 1893 there were 2 lawvers, 22 ductora, 5 dentxsts,
1 veterinarain, 3 justices of thée peace, 3 touncillors, and

1,065 naturallzed citizens awnng the French Canadian populatxon.

fourth of the Lowell pnpulatlana‘ . . '

Around 1876 the f1rst Pxench counc1lman was elected. Frwnch o

Canadianq in Lowell are mostlv Republican and are active in ' '

polztics. The second city mayor was French. However, thev are

not as active todav due to P¢an B (maﬁorlty instead of propcrtxonal

representat;on) . ‘
o) Lit*ke"Cama@a

3

Street. 1In 1881 there were & half-dozen houses there. The
settlement spread to Moodv Street and %q,Merrlmaek trest over (-

Merrimack (Lo Fletcher Streei). 'The church on Lee Street
«{now called St. Joseph's Shrine) is 2till there. La*er the
church on Merrvimack was built which cost $205,000. "Relationships
with the Yan?ee ‘population have bnen gcod a‘tbough there . has
. ) ,

) 11y Caacrlhutlans .
Cultural;v sp@aklng, Jack Kerouac¢' has ‘been the mosat 1muor¢adt
French Canadian contribution. Theres was alsc Yvonne ILemaitre
from Lowell who was a. corre&pondent for the Courier Citizen

~ \
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. also had an outlet in Montreal.
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four published poets and several novelists. The author of the
music for the Canadian national anthem, Claixa Lavallee, lived
in Lowell for a number of vears. There was also a family, the
Champagnes, who publxshed sheet music and were very blg. They

The biggest contribution of the French Canadains, perhpas, has
been their labor in the mills. Without them the city cauld not
have. expsnded and prosperad ag it did. (Santerre!}.

(

v Greeks
1) Immigratlon : ’

The first Greeks came; to Lowell in 18489 By 1864 there were a‘ .
total of 77 Greeks in Lowell, By 1900 there were perhaps 1,800
Creeks. Nearly 3539 of them were under 21 years of age. Most

of them lived on Market and Suffolk Street and worked . in the
millaz. The majority of these Greeks came from Mani or Laconia.

By 1910 the Gresks and Albanxans formed a compact little town

along Market Streeto (

The causes of the exmdus from Greece weye:

% 1) The cost of living in Greece began about 1890 to mount
rapidly while wages 4nd salaries were verv low.

2) The outlets of Rumania and Bulgaria to Greek labor
closed due to increasing hestility.-

3)The multiplication of ocean traders and the competltlon
between the English, German and Italianm lines to fill the boatg
helped the Gresks tc cross to America. .

4) The Greeks zre borm traders and fond of acqu151t10n.

{Coburn) : ‘ {

- The comiqg of the ereks in larqe numbers dates from the depression
-of 1893. “They went :0 work in the mills and worked for less

money than the other operatives, such as $4 a week. They were
sturdy and reliable and the overseers asked them to bring over
othex Greeku. In 18%4 there were 130 Greeks employas at the

Lawrence Corporation and a few at work in Trpmcnt and Suffclk
Mllls.

{
There was sometimes .n exploitation of newcomers. Greeks who

~ knew English were pz.@ $10 bv an overseer for each Greek secursd,

But these Greeks chayed others $25 for obtaining work. It was
later discoversd wha: was going on and the system was broken up.

In 1897 war broke ou: between Greece and Turkev and 200 to. 300
Greeks went back to {ight., Later they came back to Lowell, ‘
bringing their failos villacers. Up to 18357 the immigration had
mostly come from Man. and Sparta but in 1898 they hegan to come
from Thessalia, Macetonia, Epiros, and ﬁlbanzao

\In the beginning veiry few thcught thevy wege go;ng to reamin in

14
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America. Acutally onlv a few went back to Gresce although guite

a sizeable number did move out of Lowell to other American cities.,

o The peak period of immigration was in 1910-1920 when 25,000

 Greeks came. Greeks came in large numbers during the 1900

' strike at the Merrimack mills and provided cheap labor. Since

World War II, 5,000 Creeks have come and most live within the
radins of a mile from the church, Immigration comes from all

‘over Greece arid the islands, partzcularly Lesbos, Grete, Samos,
and Hvkonos.

2} The Church

The Orthodox Comnunity began in 1893, In'1895 a sdciety'was
formed with Michael Iatros as President. Rev. Kallinikos
Delveis was called from New York as pastor. The history of the

Creeks in Lowell really starts with the nlstorv of the Greek
Qrthodox Church.

The  Holy Trlnltv Church was built in 1906. Of course, at that
txme, there were no Greek architects in Lowell, but the people
still wanted a Byzantine church. So they hired an Irish
architect from Lowell named Henxv Rourke and sent him to Istanbul
to study St. Sophia and to become a “Byzantlne architect". The
church that he built is almest a replica of St. Scphla. The .
4ilded domes alone cost $3,000 and a German artist painted the
ikons for §1,000.
\

3; debation
The first day Greek~Amerlcan SuhQQl in the United States was
established in 1909 in Lowell., It was first called the Greek
Parochial School and later changed to the Hellenic American
School. Half of the curriculum was in Greek and half in English.
English was taught by Irish teachers. The school took care of
the first five years of schooling. )

Greek children did very well in school. They were highly
motivated and tried hard, and their families were interested in’
their children resceiving a good education. The public schools
were delighted to get tle Greek zhildren and therefore a good
relationship developed between Lhe school systems.

4) Cultural Activities

' | ) . ¢
There have been two or three Greek,newspapers in Lowell. There
are none et present as Greek weeklys are’ avallable from Boston.

- The GOYA (Greek Orthodox Youth of America) group is still active.

Other church—cr*entad groups were also founded, some that

coriginated in Greece zuch as the Pan-Laconiac Socle%v and. the

Macedonian Societwv.
5) Life {n the Early 19090's

Most of the Greek immigrants were unskilled laborers andifarmers.

- .
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“MnsﬁTcame from peasant villages. Ahout 10% were skilled laborers
in 1912 and 30% were illiterate. There were more Greeks at work
in the factories of Lowell than in any other city of the country.

" In fact, the Greek colony of Lowell is the most exclusive and ~ ,

distinctly Greek wettisnent in the Upited States.

In the early 19200°s almast every qtore on Market Street was
operated by a Creek. Greek life was vzrtuallv reproduced here
with small ¢rocery stoxas. restaurants,’ smoky coffeehouqesm
playinyg cavde, gte. In 1922 the list of Greek businesses and
professicns was: 7 restaurants, 20 cocffeehouses, 12 barbershéps,
2 druqstores, 6 fruit stures, 8 shoeshing parlors, 1 drygocds '
store, 4 ticket agencies, 7 bakeries, 4 candy stores, 22 grocery
stores, $ ¢oal and wood dealers, B truckmen, 1 pool zoom, i

- flaveoring extract factory, 1 wholesale meat dealer, 4 physicians,
1l priest, 2 Protestant ministers, 3 milkmen, 5 farms, 200 farm ~
laborers, 10 real estate owners, 1 real astate broker, 2 hankersg
‘ and 3 teachexs. (Keanqott)

o )
.-

21 ClVll War B

In the 1920's there was a VLolent ciV1l war within the Gzeuh
community and the church was divided by a tremendous schigm.
Ther@ ware mainlv twu causes for thisg war:
A 1} In the 1929° $‘the manarchv in Greece was supplanted bf
Venezilos or the Republican qovernment.. Greeks 1h Lowell became
split down the middle over golztics in Greszce -~ i.e., Rvyaliats
vs. Populists. :

2) A certain bishop came to Lowell ‘and set up an emplre which_
virtually split the community. ,

The Translfguratlon and 5t, George's Churches are products of
this war. (Jarvis) ‘ )

y ?) Greeks Enter Lawall Life RN
J .

After 1925 the Gresks beqan to move out of the Acre althougn there -
‘were still Greeks coming in all the txme to replenisgh them. In
the 1930°'s the Greeks began to become more significant in the
political life of Lowell. Up until the 1930°s the Yankees had
controlled politics, alonyg with & couple of French Canadians,
During the 30°s and 40's George Eliades was the first elected
Greek councilwman and later he became mayor.

While the first qeneraflﬂn Greeks were peasants and unqulled :
laborers, the second generation became mrotebcxanals.: After the
Pepression and the War, dresks reaslly beqan to assert themselvas
profeassionally and politically. '

After leaving the Acve, fAreeks moved to Belvidexe, the Highlanda,
?awtuchehv11le, and the qaburbs. The new tides moved in to the

i -
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Acre area around Harket, Drummer, BrQadway} and Suffolk Streets.
The churhc helped them to keep their identity and their culture,

8) Contributions

There was a favous Greek doctor from Lowell who worked thh>Dr.
Donley in Asia. Also Jamas Demotropouéos, an artxa% in Bodtanp‘
was. born in Lfﬂell.

The Greek co:tribution to Lowell hes been their sense of.
determination and their vigor. They wanted to de well and be-
come good Pmericans. Tney .also have a flair for business and
profesalonul excellence. 1a the mills thev worked very hard

in ovrder to support thiir families end so contributed to Lowell s
' growth an: prosperxity. (Jarvis)

Fcrtugu&eé
The Po::tguese poprlation is mainly from the Azores and the .
Cape V¢ de Islands, few having come frpm Portugal itself. There
were <wo distinct classes ?f immigrants:

1) Those from the Westward Islands who were of Caucasian’
blevk and close.y allled to portugal la language, customs, and
zm44Q1on,

2) And thase from Cape Vexds islards who were known as
‘Bravas® [manv came from Brava Island) and whe were Black with
iit:le Portuadese block, speaking Creol:

- The Portugucse began to come around 199¢ in larye numbers and:

they worked largely in the mills. In 1912 thev had acguired
about $2006,000 worth of real estate in the city and they built

a large church and parish house on Central Street. In 1916 there
were 31,001 Portuguess living in Lowell.

N

Othexr Ethnic Groups

-

:Others also came. ~In 1916 there were 3 (00 Russiaas (including

Poles, Lithuanians, and Finns) living on the river front in
Centralville, north of Bridge Street. There was alse & small
Scandanavain population. More recentlv there has bean a large

immigration of Spanish-speaking peopxes, partlcula 7 Puerto
Ricans. ‘

Dramatic changes, therefore, in the ethnic composition of the
city occurred in the late 1800's. By 1900 the foreign papulation
was growing and included a large =lement of unskilled, iiliterate,
and non-English speaklng people.

Figures for the Hamxlton'ﬁanufacturing Compénv show the iﬁcrease:

{
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1844-46 Tnefe‘ware 92.13% U.5.-born and 8.8% foreign~born
- 1854-56 - There were 47. 47% U.5.~born and 52.53% foreign»
' born '

In 1812 out of & populatlon 6f 100, 000, 40% were ron-English
apeaklng. By 1330 the central and northern parts «£ the city
were . domlnantlj foreign and 73% of the population w:re @ither

foreign~born or of foreign parentage. (Kenngott) |

J

'

SOCIAL AND LABOR CONDITIONS

\ ; ‘ Hou51ng_Cond1tlons
0r1q13a1h’ conditions for the operatlves and workers wese gend
but in time thevy deteriorated. The company housing had heen
model hoising because it was comprehensive in conception,

A\

. efficiert and functional. Also, housing was considered to be a

right frr all and not a reward. ‘ -

Howeve  , some men began moving -away from carporatlon housing
whan \ney had money to live elsewhere. They didn't want to be
clos? to the mills and its supervision. With the advent of
ethr| c problems, tenements beyan to let to outsiders and the
dhzlicter of the boardinghouses changed as a result. Ethnic

.grcbg; wanted separata housing and with the growth of the city.

it fas eas;er to ftnd private houses. ;

'Th= boardlnghousea became overcrowded and the well-to-do mill
&fjents moved away to Belvidere. With the decline of corporate

peternalism came to delcine of the boardinghouse system. Then
¢ ame haphazard housing developnents and tenements. By the
7880's Lowell had sever potential ghettos which the bourgeoisie

- wpleited. The city felt no responszbilzty to preserve the housing -
‘when the manufacturing companies went out of business and so. much

of the houSLng was torn down. - : (o

Sinaeclgoo almost all of the boardinghouses and tenement houses
were sold and the rents doubled and trebled. The former tenants
who were largely American have been supplanted by foreigners,

_two or three families or more crowding in where one family used

to live. The houses were not kept up hy the corporations.

The corporatlon houses were well-built and usually cf brick,

and for a long time were practically the only brick dwellings

in the city. In 1508 94% of the bulldings in the city were of
wood and che danger of fire, especially in the crowded tenewments
of ¥French Canada, the Greeks and the Portuguese, was great.~

The Acr@ was establiszhed in 1833z “In the«auburbs of’quell,

{
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strike on record was in 1834 caused by the announcement of a 15%
reduction in wages. There was a speech on the rights of women
which 800- ~-2000 girls attended. Most ‘later returned to work and

a few of the ringleaders were refused entrance in the mills. The
women strikers were generally criticized bhv the papers as the
wages, even when reduced, were more than girls could get in any
‘other occupation in New England.

The second strike occurred in 1836 and was the first time that
a woman spoke in public. This strike was against an increase

in board. The PFactory Girls Association had 2,500 members and
it adopted resclutions that it would not receive communication
from the manufacturers axcept through the officers of the union.
Before the end of the rmonth the girls were defgated and rﬁtnrned
to work.

2) Shorter Hours

The desire for shorter hours showed itself as early as 1846 .
when a body of factory operatives presented their demands to
the corporatiens for a shorter workdav. . This redguest was un-
heeded.. By 1851 the ten-hour dav was the rule in the building
trades alt hough certain contractors refused to heed it. The
working day was gradually shortened and by 1874 the ten-hour

kday was a reality.

1

. - 3) Other Strikes

Since the first industrial disturbance in 1834 there have been
131 strikes and 5 lockouts {(that is, up to 1212). In the period
1830-1879 there were only 9 strikes while'over 100 strikes have
occurred between 1879 and 1912. Of the 100 strikes, only three
or four were sexious, There has bzen only one general strike
affecting nearly 21l of the mills ' (in 1903 for a 10% increase

of wagns) which failed after nearlv nine weeks. (Information
after 1912 was not available}.

The textile cérporations have been remarkably free from labor
disputes as to wages, hours, or general conditions, Most of
these disputes were rarher recent and due to new immigrants.
Of the strikes in Lowell, prior to 1912, one-fifth have been
won by the emplovees, one-fifth have beoen amicably settled,
and three-fifths have been lost, Thouqh employeass 1ost most
of the single contests, they won the battle for shorter houra
and the recognition of trade-~unjons.

4) Female l.abor Reform Asrociationq

The period of 1840—1860 was Lnowu as the age of lofty enthusiasm
and humanitarianism. It was the age of social reform and trade
unionism bagan to get a ‘oothold. C(losely connected with the
efforts of the mill girls to improve conditons through strikes
was the development of fewmale labur reform associations.  They
drew thelr membership from the mill girls and Lowell became

the center for ?thr organization activity. .
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in 1845 the Lowell Female Labor Reform Association was established.
It came into existence as a. result of the agitation for shorter
hours and higher wages that accompanied the strikes of the mill
girls in the 40°s. Miss Sarah Bagley, who worked for 10 years

in the mills, was elected pfesident of the assoclatlon. The
memb»rsh¢p in waell was 450.

Early in 1845 Miss Bagley and oth@rs ‘had gone before the
Hassachuaetta Legizlative Committes and testified as to the
conditions in the mills. This was the first. American governmental,
investigation of 1sbor conditions, and it was due almost solely
te the petitions of the warking women. Their complaints were
iong hours, insufficient mee for mpals, and bad air.

The union ﬁontlnuea a systematlc effort to influence publlc T
opinion in favor of the mill girls. By newspaper articles,

by "factery tracis”, and by public speeches they extended their
propaganda work to other parts of New England, About 1845

the women ¢f the Lowell union purchased the press and type of

‘the Voice of Industry, a leadlnq New England labor weekly, anﬂ
continued the paper in the interests of labor reform.

In 1846 a gathering at City Hall was held with spﬁakers, a
%and, and refreshemtns. The. proceeds went to the cause of labor
reform. They also held a “May Party" which was very successful.

‘An Industrial Refrom Lyceum was eztablished which secrued the

best speakers in the country on. suujects daalxng with the labox
reform movement. ‘ [

In 1347 the aesucxatian chaﬁged 'its name to the. Lowell Female

' Industrial Reform and Mutual Aid Society. There was an -

initiation fee of 50¢ and weekly dues of 6¢ and a sick fund of
$2-5 per wesk if one was 111. Latexr the assocxatmonlexpanded
to all New England towns. o N o ' .

SOCIAL AND CIVIC INSTLTUTIONS AND ASuOCIATIONS

In 1912 there were 71 churches and 6en0msnat10nal missions, 3
hogpitals, 3 orphanages, the 0ld Ladies Home, the YMCA and YWCA,
the Leowell Art Associations, ten French, eight CGreek and three
Portuguese societies, and 40 clubs. There were 41 labor
organizations and 143 secret and fraternal orders. {(Kenngott)

i) HOQpitalu

In 1912 the co:po;atlnns viere still supporting the Lowell )
Hospital which was founded in 1839 by the corporations.. None
were refused because of xnabl?l%v to pay. for 27 years it was
the only hospital in Lowell and it did not confine itself to .
corporation cases. Charles Dickens spoke of this hospital in

his American Notes with much praise. The hospital esgtablished . -
a tralnlng schocl for: nurses ‘and cpened an outpatient departmehto
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In 1863 the Sodality of the Hely Family in conjunction with §t.
Patrick's Church established@ a hospital in the CGedney house. The
idea of a larger hospital evolved and it became St. John's
Hospital with the purchase of the Livermore land and 0ld Yellow
House in 1867.

2) Clubs and Associations

The Ministry at Large was incorporated in 1879 and helps needy-
families. It carvied on special works and classes of relief and
education. The evenzng school system was originated here, with
classes offered in cookery, millinery, dressmaking, citizenship,
fencing, dancing, debatlnq, lectures on hyglene, and 5001a1 and
industrial economics.

The Lowell Boys' Club was organized in 1802, its mission being
to keep the street boys out of reform schools and prisons. It

' established a game room, cobbling and carpentry courses, and

athletics and manual training.

The Vesper Countrxy Club is a union of the Vesper Boat Club (1875)
and the Lowell Country Club (1892) in 1899, From 1875-1885 the
clubhouse was one of the most active centers of awuatic in%erest
in New England. At first the interest was in rowing. Then sbout
4881 it changed to canoeing, with bowling in the winter and
bicycling in the summer.

The Yorick Club was orqan:iéd as a young mens’ social club in
1882 for the purpose of maintaining a clubhouse and a reading
room.

The Middlesex North Agrluultural Society was incorporated in
1855 to stimulate an interest in agricultural pursuits. It

held annual agricultural fairs at the 0ld fairgroudns on Gorham
Street until 1906 when it moved elsewhere. In Civil War times
the grounds was a military camp for assembling regiments, known
as Camp Wilson and Camp Chase.

The YMCA began in 1857 and occupied Barristers Hall until 1889
when it moved to Huvd Street. Attendonce was from 150 to 200
daily and there were evening educational classes and a series
of lectures, concerts, and social entertainments.

The People's Club was opened in 1872 with reading rooms and
lectures which were free to all. 1In 1878 a department for women
was organized with classes in sewwng, dressmaking, and milinery.
Tnouaands visited the rooms each y@ar.

3) The ¥iddlesex Mechan;cs Association )
: / ’
The Middlesex Mechanics Association received its charter in
1825. 1In its original constitution and purpose it was an exact
copy of the organization founded by Paul Revere. It was

Lahbe TP VB, Ry
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primarily a trade guild and its early meétings were held at the .
tavern. Membership was limited to mechanics (painters, printers,
tailors, masons, and macninists were among its charter members).

In 1835 agents, overseers, and milllhanas were admitted and the

"trade guild functions became obsclete. Now the main function

was the education of mechanics afd mill operatives via a
library, laboratory, and lectures. Prominent members were
Warren Colburn and Theodore Edson. Mechanigs Hall built on
Dutton Street in 1835 was the “pet" of the corporations. 1Its
accumulation of books in its library was one of the finest in
the countxry. '

In 1851 the association admitted all citizens to membership éand
the library became more literary and popular and less scientific.
Its lectures began the famous Lycsum (an early course was given
by Emerson with 6 lectures on Rapresentative Men). The library
had 25,000 volumes. Mechanics' fairs were held in 1€51, 1857, and
1867. Later the things i% did were better done by other

agencies and it closed in 1896.

4) Churkthes -

In 1912 there were 70 chuféhes in Lowell, 50 of them non-Catholic

for one-fourth of the populations, and the other 18 (Roman
Cathelic, Greek Orthodox, and Jewish) for the remaining three-
fourths of the populations. There was a movement in the early
vart of 1911 for a federation of churches. About half of the
Protestant churches elected delegates but the Catholics, Greeks,
and Jews, who formed over half of the population, declined to
unite with the Protestants in any movement.

The First Unitarian Church was organized in the old Stone Tavern
on Pawtucket Street in 1822. The Sunday School began in 1830,
Holly Tree Inn was established "to encourage temperance by
offering hot coffee and purc milk at such prices that the poorest
laboring man and woman could afford to buy them." They did
managce to lessen the sales of liguor in the community. The
Committee on Culture gave lectures, concerts, and readings.

3) Recreatinn

In 1912 there were 40 different recreational clubs, besides the
many literary and travel clubs. There were 13 theaters, 32
billiard and pool rooms, & public bowling alleys, 25 Greek
coffeehouses, 94 saloons and 28 purks including the playgrounds
with two popular resorts (Lakeview on Lake Mascuppic and
Canobis Lake) plus the two rivexrs for rowing, canceing, and
skating.

The 28 parks and playgwounds covered about 140 acres, most of them
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covering only a few feet as "sguares". Only 9 covered more than
one acre and there were only two permanent parks (North and
South Commons). The first municipal playground was laid out
on the South Common in 1905 and was designed for young childxen.

The South cOmmon was the most- centraily located park and the
most popular. It became the open-air auditorium for public
gatherings and for meetings of socialists, temperance reformers
-and religious teachers. On the 4th of July it was converted
into a midway with pink lemonade and peanut stands, restaurants,
sideshows, snakecharmers, fortune tellers and ferris wheelse
. Attendance was large ---about 40,000 toe 50,000.

The Boulevard along the Merrimack River in Pawtucketville was
used for automobile races on Labor Day. They began in 1908
and consisted of thrée days of auto and cycle races, athletic
contest, and banks strewst with people and concession stands.
 Fees were charged. The city of Lowell, in compariscn to the
average for the state, was not spending very much on health
and sanitaticn, libraries, or recreation. (1912 figures from
Xenngott}

6) Civic Improvements

The new City Hall and the City Library were both built in 1893.
gln 1877 Alexander Bell demonstrated the workings of the telephone
in Huntington Hall. By 1878 eighty people owned a phone with
fifteen people to.a line. \

TRANSPORTATION. .

Lowell Horse Railway started during the Civil War years. The
first line beganh at Pawtucket Bridge, the secoud at Merrimack
Square, the third at Middlesex Street, and the fourth ran up
Westford and Chelmsford Streets The Department of Public Works
currently occupies the old horse barns.

In 1899 the first trolley cars were introduced in Lowell.
/ :
EDUCATION

1) Grammar Schools

From 1882 to 1885 three new grammar schools were built. Two
older ones, Franklin and Mann, were discontinued, In 1882
Highland Grammay School was built., In 1883 Butler School was
established and in 1884 the Pawtucket School. There were
music teachers as early as 1849 and also writing masters.
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'%Lct or natlonallfy and was the first all girls boarding school

o G6.

}- 2) 1899 Statistics

In 1824 Lowall bullt a new high school, In 1899 there was one
high school, 9 grammar schools, -33 Primary schcols, one training
school, 12 kxnderqardens, 273 teachers, 266 schoolrooms, and
evening schools in the winter months with 152 teachers.

H

3)»Evening Schbéls

PreVLcus to 1855 the free evenlng schools were maintained by the
Lowell Hxssxonary Association. In 1855 they were brought under
the supervision of the school commitiee. Day school rooms were i
opened for the evening schools and a:itendance increased. 1In T
1872 three evening classes in drawing were formed, one 1n free~
hand, one in archltecfural, and one in mach1ne~draw1ng
training school for the instruction cf candldates in teachlng
was establ:shed -

'. . [4

4) Rogers Hall Schnol P

Zadock Rogerq had purchased part of the Madame WlnLh op land
grant in 1805. In 1892 his daugshter, E;lzabeth Rogers, named
a corporatlon, "Rogers Hall", a4 gave aiout’ an acre of 1and
with tlie mansion built by hcr tather in 1837 for a "prjvate
,school for young ladies". The : school was open to any religious

in the region. Girls graduatisg from Rogers Hall were admitted
to the leading colleges, for wcmen. The school is located on
‘Rogers Street. A i . '

5) ‘Lowell State College

Lowell State Coliehe opened :n 1897 under tbe name, The-Normal
School. 1Its first principal was Frank Coburn,, former master
of the Lowell High School

6) Lowell Tecinological Institute : '

In 1890 the mills of Lowell were flcurlshlng The earlier
system of employing girls to operate the-machihe-y had rassed
due to tcchnological changis and a flooded market 0f unemp Loyed
immigrants The, teuhnoloqgcal changes required a more sophis-
ticated knowl‘dce of the will machinery and operavions. Mill
owners began a nove in L8‘1 to establish a school 4designed to
train people in the textiie prucesses. The school was chartered
in 1895 as the Lowell Tewtile School., It was the iirst schoel
on this continznt devote: ‘exclusively to tedtile edwcatlon and !
the lalgest of 1ts kind .n-the world,.

If offered lLaLKUCLhOﬂ :n the texflie processes and sad a
‘cotton departdent woo.en and worsted department, ‘weaving
department, capartm@nt >f des*gn, decnrahlvp art, and a de-
partment of mechanlc :

.
¥

It is now known_ﬁs Lo»gll Techhological Instituta and offers

-
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’uen, wi“lkes. “I‘he Historv of Chelmsﬁord.l
TIndians and early settlers bf th@rnowell area.‘

railerads in LoweIi Edward‘harter has a copy.
L

. on the 1egends and hxstcry f the nerrimack szer.v

First ?loor Hlstory Room 1n»the Lowell Public bekarv.

Geod sectlon en the*\

ﬂi:n;adlee, Francis.p Phé Lowell Razlxaad.‘ cOmglete history.of

Browne, G.W. The vaer of Broken Waters: Includes 1nformation
,‘%uhanges xn Lowell. Interestlng xnformation but brief., See the

'* cheva1;er, Mlchael. Socxety, Manners and Politlcs 1n the u.vs,fwﬁf§715

»

- Clarke. Mary Stetson. Lxmner s Daughxer. Children s book
s%the dedlesex Canal’ and Col@nel ﬁ?faﬁ;n@ ;f; S

. CQburn, Fi W‘V History of Lowell and its PEOple.fwf&

tne majcr scurces on Lowell"hisyory. : ;;(

2

;T«COOlidger G Mill and Mansion B“cellent source on mllls and

,«echnmicfbacquound

Courler cxﬁizen Companv. Illustrated‘ﬂistory af Lcwéll.

source on Lowell hxstcry.‘

ahout

R

‘H'Cowley, Charles. Illustrated ﬂzstorv of Lowell.‘ Another major

 'Mem0r1es of the IndxanszandiP&oneers of the Reglon of

First Floor Historv gpom,in the.Lawell Puhlic Librarv.‘

peTocqueville, A, De@chacy in:America.a)

fnhnwell from chkens’ f%mous visit,

! J‘EddY, Caleb., sttorlcal Sketch of the Maddlesex ganalfﬂﬁif"f‘

Boston, 1843

[EREY

'f”ﬂhecdore EdSon Diarles.f:

“Ilot, Janﬁ‘f’
- Indlans_?l~r

Boston, 1899'
Eﬁ&ard Larter has a copyz

tiEll;s, Gearge.: The ngell Boek,
= anﬁ sketches.

Léﬁell. 1862. 1invaluable source on. the Indlan period. Se

'ﬂDickens, charlea., Amerlcan Notes.f’Interesting observat;cns on";

‘3,"

L metie L a .
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““ Factalres and thezr Female, OperatiVes.. In51ghtb 1nto the mlll ifkﬁ
glrle* li?é.‘ "Joseph. Kapyc1nsk1 has ‘a copy.A‘, :

Forbes, Allan.; Gther Indxan Events of New England

“Francls, J. B. Lowell Hyﬁraulmc Experlmentse‘“

. Msasurement of the Water Pcwer Used by the Manufacturing-~
Lomapnies of Iowell‘ Edward i&rter has” a. copy.

B Gleanxngs from the Merramac Valle Contalns poetry and essays.
Joseph Kopycinski has -a conv‘ : o R

“*ffriffmn, Sara. . thtle Storaes Ahout uowell. Butterfiéld, Lowélliﬂ,
o 1913.- . . o L ‘1 L o R
Qualnt Bitq of Lowell Hlstorya Both this baok and the
above contain interesting material on Lowell and“can be found
1n the First Floor Hmstory Room of the Lowell Publlc lerary.\

| Hale, Edward Everett. New Bnqlande@yhood. Cassell New York, ;ﬁ J?

1890& \

-Handbock far the Visxtar to Lowell ‘ 18¢8.

Holden, Raymond P. The Meﬁrimaékrniver. ﬂajor source book ‘on the
L Merrimack Rlver. IR Q: o : e
fﬂopkins, G. wM Clty Atlas of Lowell, 1879.' See‘Joseph Kopweinski.*
- ‘ \
- Jarv1s, Charles. . The Cathedral. An unpublished manuscrlpt on.
Greek history in Lowell, particularly on the history of the
Greek - church., - See Charles Jarvis at Lowell Technological
nstitute. o : A.,u - SRR 7 ;'

: Josephson, Hanna. The Golden Threadse The be$t4modeinfbook o
about mill 11fe.‘~ v ._v‘5'ﬁ. L '
3 x' \' T " :
Kenngott, G. F. The aecord of City. 1912 ‘Major source .
S book on sociological h&stori of Lawell. Conta1ns many maps
and statzstics and znteres ing photoqrayhs. .
Kerouac, Jack.‘ The Town and the Clty New York.,‘Harcdurt
Brace Jovanovich, Inc., 1950. Novel about Lowell by one
of xts natlve sons.‘fA o - . ‘“vf

B £

Kopycinskz, Joseph, L1brar1an,‘Lowe11 Technologlcal Institute. /
-+ Locks and Canals. Lecture dellvexed to the anell Histeriaal
I Society,:lBGS ﬂi‘A ,a~ @_ .

;;,Laurent l&aéeph. Abenakx-Englmsh Dlwtaonary.h K1880'S)Lﬁ »
chtmonary of Indlan dla}.ect . : R

oy
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Lowell Caurier C1txzen. Lowell Cen*ennzal Edltzon. 1936 e

Lowell Instltutian for Sav;ngs.t

Lowell Illustrated.' ExCQllent photoqraphs. Edward Larter has . :
acmw.»~' R :_:‘W’ ! Ll St Y
S g ‘ oo K SR T : o T
The Lowell er;_g Famuus publlcatlon of m111 gzrls‘ poetxy ;
and“lxterature. .,;‘. - a; . . ,‘\;«‘ .

Massachusetts Instit&te of Technoloqy.‘ howell!.fﬁhﬁﬁarif}ta
American Industrial- Community. Invaluable; collecting

of easays and articles .. A T “j *

"‘(’ N Lo

The Me&rlmack Rlver. ‘f oD

T

Meaawr, J. W'ﬂ

Lowe11,As It Was and As It Is."?'¢
. o

" The. 01d Mlddlesex Canai ln 1932

o

lees, H. A.

Me‘v1lle ‘Smith. 3 vdls.

Munra,

- ‘The 0ld Middlesex Canal' A,Story in Plctures. 1937,
Both Munro scrapbooks are in the Vau]t Room of the TULES" R

Unaversity lerary‘ .ﬁg,v T e T " u
rl{fﬂick@rsoa, Tan.i Brlght PromiseV Chil&reh’éfbook oﬁféhe‘mili 'f
A glrls. ',‘4 R 1! B R A
o T | v T “ P i ) . S "

\ O'Dwyer, G. ‘The Irish Catholic Gane$is of Lowell. Can be found‘ s
~ in the Joyce Collecglan at. Boqton College Library.;:‘ g jg o B

Old Ré91dents Historical Assocxatlcn of Lowell Lontrlbutlons.s~
6 vols. Excellent. collectlon of essays and articles cn o
Lowell hlstory,,; : : . . S

\"

Lowell-,

ﬁt the Meetlng of the Waters. RN

7>—Parker, M. T,

A StUdY Uf IndUStrlal Devalopment.rv !‘i;':fi -

’fRoberts. ChrlstOpher.

’T?{Property Atlaa of the thv of Lawell 1935.

See Joseph Kopy01nskl.

garvard; l

'ﬁzgl gnlversity Press, Cambrldge,,1§§§

‘Rcblnaon, Harrlet

N L/

Loom and, Spmdle.5

(RN of £ formnr mlll girl.. R
S SR
silvar, Ruth., The Mlddlesex Canal

PubliC lerarv T W »“w

(:

fThoreau, Hanry D. .

\The dedlesex Canal 1793~1860.‘
Interestlng remlnlscences :
Manuscrlpt.‘

The Lonuard @nd the Merrlmack.»

_\,;H‘:"
‘ .

)'* : i
Arragned by

: Dudley Lunt.; Thmreau 8 famuus txip 6bqervatlons,ﬂ;q‘ S p"
T Trumbuxj, Jamas,*txanclator«' Natlck chtxonary.~ lect’ -
- compllatlon cf tbe Ind:an language. ' RS g
’ M o : V N 4;)L‘ R
4 - , [ N
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Essex Institute, Salem., Informatidn on the Middlesex Canal.
Harvard Graduate School of Education Library.

Lowell Public Library, Lowell. See the llistorvy Room on the first
floor and the #Historical Society Rcom on the second floor,

Lowell Technological Thetitute'Library. See Joseph Kopvcinskd,
Librarian. Contains all of the Locks & Canals material
plus some of the iistorical Society material; also, maps,
atlases, photographe.

" Massachusetts Histoxical Society. Has a good collection of

canal documents.
Massachusetts Institute of Technology Libraries.
Rotch Library, M.I.T.

schiisinger Library, Radcliffe Yard, Brattle Street, Cambridge.
Collection on women who worked in the Lowell mills. Includese.
Barriet Robinson letters.

Tufts University Library.

w&lieslev Library. Has notebooks and photecgraphs of the Middlesex
' Canal. '

Widener Library, Harvard University.

Woburn Library, Woburn. Secc Historical Rooms.

MUSEUMS

The following are museums which contain information or material
pertaining to Lowell history and the Industrial Revolution:

Middlesex Canal Musuem, Historical House, 36 Cnoncord Road,
Pillerica. Contains glass slides of the canal, maps,
« prants, photos, books, and a boat medel. Eee Louis Eno.

Peabody "unuem, [larvard Uriversitv, Canbridge. Excellent for
ctudies of the Hew Brgland Indians. Exhibits of Indian
privfacts and a wodel of an Indian viliage on the first
fioor. l

Taxtile Muscum, Andover. Contains a collection of photos, books,
and machinery. See Bob Leavitt, Director. Also four other
curators for books, manuscripis, machinery, and textiles.
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,Ths «allawing are orqanlzatians er agenei,s in the areaAwhich

ave’ information or- personnel reﬂnurces on-Lowell history and -
*whicb can be helpful in developing Lowell's historical resnuree
These agenaias»which bave ‘been - cdntacted ara starred‘i\uﬂ

.*Department of Nautraljka$aurces State Office Euxlding.
.. Cambridge Street, Boston, ‘Bee Hatt Connelly or-Joh
: Richardson: for wo pn‘the-Indians an earlyj ettler

, ,,of deell or S

%“ - Sbe Warren Chesley,g
5(%57*7854}, Pres;dent,a ‘

“9 .ﬁpplet;on street‘ mweu {'}’453«3 66
'Hisﬁorigw

(ﬁ55~5751) or- Luuas Epa,‘?mze Pres;dent, 22 3hattuck Street,
Lcwell (452“8991).v ﬁoilection of'materials and béoks :
ﬁ i ;

Massachusetts;State Archives. Co&lectian—oi maps df the a::'e:as.“;7




.Auﬁhority;:”ﬂexghborhood knalysesmfa
e Magsa c_usetts._~ \ R

'%‘#Adaws, Br. Don71a3~ ]
v .o Massachusetts: ¥nst1tute of mechnologyv Cambridge.: ﬁesouxee:
person'on ﬁne Mlédlesex*danal has informatxun ‘and- plana :
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-, Dick., Lowszll &un, Lowell., demper of the Indian Hebbyist

Association and interested in Indian hiztory.

Coawdray, Judge rlicc. Infermation on the Pierce House,

o
n

L
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)

voney, Jim., Low2ll newspaperman vho is interested in Lowell

history.

e nore, Ferry. Member of the Lowell Historical Socisty and

good source on cansl and general history.

1, Jack., Chelmsford. Propietor of Locke and Canals before
Melwin Teabary Knows a good d al sabhout the canals.
Louig. 2 Shattuck Strea2t, Lowell (452-8%01%. Vicew
Presmident ~f che Luwell Hist Oriudl°:oci0t» and President

of the Midilesex Canzl Association snd a general mine of
informaticn.

zv, Woger :ad Fred., Former millowners.

Allen. (455-5751), Presidént of the Lowell storical
©

n, Hi
Society. ‘ias a collection of old slides of Lowell.

avis,. Bill., Market Strezt, Lowsll, n artist who has painte:
vig, Bill farket Stre=zt, Lowsll An axrtist 1 as painted

‘yrp_.

early Mark:t Street.

a, Stanley. Andover Street, Lowell. Has collection of

Indian artifacts from Forit Hili

#*liah.,. Burce. ity Developwment Authority, £9 Appleton Ztreet,

g.11

%

a

7l

e, Neirl. Helloml

Lowell {(458-8766}. Helped wri:e the Histerical Surw 2y
Report for the CDA. .

Prescott. Melrose. Hag cclored slides of the Middlesax
Canal.

Charies. Poom 134, Lowell High Schonl, Lowa2li. Instructor
in Sociel Studies who 1z writing a book oa the history of
Toowrell,

<%, Sarmy. Lowell. His crandparents worked in a mill.
a8, Charics. Frofedsor mf Langusyes and Literature at
Lovcl Techrolcgical Tnevd Lu*p {453-2177). Is wrating
2 bonk on the Gresw histore of Lowell,

on, Seorgd . AutinoT ot Nerthern Middizsex Planning Reposh.

ey Rutbhoer of & kook on cansls.

.

avniciak, r. Fnowledee of whe 2ld railreoads in Lowell.



e

e e

i g g e

¢ /

Klump, John., Adams House, Salem Road, North Billerica (667-
4670). Instructor in high school in Billerica and interested
in teaching youth about their historical heritage. Member
of the Middlesex Canal Association.

*Kopyecinski, Joseph. Librarian at Lowell Technological Institute
- Library and a member of the Lowell Historical Society.
Knowledge of a general history of Lowell.

*Langenback, Randolph. 222 Concord Avenue, Cambridge (492-
6823). Excellent source on mills and mill photographs.
Is writing an article on the mills of Lowell.

*Larter, Edward. Wannalancet Mills (455-547%). Invaluable
source of information and boocks, photos, maps of Lowell.
A millcwner, Director of the Lowell Historical Society,
and interested in preserving mills and old machinery.
Collection of old machinery and tools, old books, glass
photos, maps of the mills and surroundings.

Lasher, Harry. Tewksbury. Did original illustrations of the
Middlesex Canal.

Laurent, Stephen. Intervale, New Hampshire. Assistant
postmaster at Jackson, New Hampshire who know the
Abenaki (Indian) language.

Lawson, Fred. Member of the Middlesex Canal Association’and%
author of articles on the Canal. :

Leavitt, Bob. Textile Museum Director, Andover. Source of
information on the mills. . -

Lezberg, Melvin. Resident Engineer of Locks and Canals
(457-7521}). '

Livingston, Wilbutt. Has collection of Indian artifacts.

Lyons, Margorie. Worked for many vears on the French newspaper,
"L'Etoile."

Macheros, George. Has access to model of the Middlesex Canal.
I

Malthus, Christy. Model Cities Agency, B89 Appleton Street,
Lowell. Has' conal sketches and an aerial photo of

Lowell.

McDonough,; Georxge. City Engineer, Lowell., Interested in
Lowell history. '

Mitchell, Neal. Neal Mitchell Associutes, 149 Putnam Avenue,
Cambridge. Wrote gtudv on education in Lowell in con-
junction with Pat Mogan. . )

*Mogan, Pat. Director of Mocel Cities Education Program,
Smith-Baker Center, Lowell (459-2139).°

ey
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O'Brien, Julia. MAPC plan of Middlesex Canal.

Parker, Arthur. Attorney in lowell who helped in preparing
the Historical Survey Report of the CDA. Has poles from
one of the barges.

*Richardson, John. Department of Natural Resources,; State
Office Building (Room 1305), 160 Cambridge Street, HBoston
{727-3174). Lxcellent resource person on the Indians and
early settlers of Lowell. 1Is gathering material for
publication. Access to maps and old bocks.

Roth, Chuck. Massachusetts Audubon Society (259-9500),
Lincoln., Alsc a member of the National Advisory Committee
on Environmental Education.

Sampas, Charles. Lowell Sun. Knowledge of ethnic and general
history of Lowell.

*Zanterre, Richard. Lowell resident (452-01961l) who is an
instructor at Bnston Colleyge (9G3-0100, x722). Is doing a
major study of the French Canadain history in Lowsll and
has an extensive collection of books, essays, articles,
newspapey clippings, etc.

3ears, John. MDC Commissioner who is interested in developing
green strips on both gides of the Middlesex Canal,

Silva, Father., S5t. Anthony's Church, Lowell. Has informatién
on the Portuguese history of Lowell.

*Stamas, Peter. Model Cities Edvcation Program, Smith-~Baker
Center, Lowell.

Stone, Robert. Manager of Locks and Canals,

Tedesco, Mr. Norhteastern University, Has written case studies
on early America for the Lowell area,.

Tsavares, John. Model Cities Agency, 89 Appleton Street,
Lowell. 2An iaterested "history buff.,”

Walsh, Frank. [roressor and chairman of the History Department,
Lowall Technological Taztitute. An urban bistsrian with
kpowledge of fowell history.

Zachacer, Francis. An attorner in Lowell who is preparing a
paper on the Molish in lLowell for the Lowell Historical
Society.

The custodian at Lowell High Schonl is interested in Lowell
history.

There is an "amateur archacologist® in the Indian Hobbvist
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MISCELLANEOUS

Church histories (i.e., §t. Patrick's Centennial History:
Synagogue histories). iheck with the various churches
of Lowell ox with the Lowell Historical Society.

Lowell State history papers. See Pat Mogan.
Lowell Tech Pollution Grant for the Merrimack River.

0ld newspapers in the Lowell Public Library. Also check with
newspapermen in Lowell.



